Union Calendar No. 245

102d Congress, 1st Session - - -

- - - - - House Report 102-414

SHORT-SELLING ACTIVITY IN THE STOCK MARKET: MARKET EFFECTS AND THE NEED FOR REGULATION (PART 1)

ELEVENTH REPORT

ВУ ТНЕ

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS



DECEMBER 6, 1991.--Committed to the Committee of the Whole House on the State of the Union and ordered to be printed

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE

WASHINGTON : 1991

48-830

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

JOHN CONYERS, Jr., Michigan. Chairman

CARDISS COLLINS, Illinois **GLENN ENGLISH, Oklahoma** HENRY A. WAXMAN, California TED WEISS, New York MIKE SYNAR, Oklohoma STEPHEN L. NEAL, North Carolina DOUG BARNARD, Jr., Georgia TOM LANTOS. California ROBERT E. WISE, JR., West Virginia BARBARA BOXER, California MAJOR R. OWENS, New York EDOLPHUS TOWNS, New York BEN ERDREICH, Alabama GERALD D. KLECZKA, Wisconsin ALBERT C. BUSTAMANTE, Texas MATTHEW C. MARTINEZ, California DONALD M. PAYNE, New Jersey GARY A. CONDIT, California PATSY T. MINK, Hewrit **RAY THORNTON, Arkanaos** COLLIN C. PETERSON, Minnesota ROSA L. DELAURO, Connecticut CHARLES J. LUKEN, Ohio JOHN W. COX, Jr., Illinuis

FRANK HORTON, New York WILLIAM F. CLINGER, J.R., Pennsylvania AL McCANDLESS, California J. DENNIS HASTERT, Illinois JON L. KYL, Arizona CHRISTOPHER SHAYS, Connecticut STEVEN SCHIPF, New Mexico C. CHRISTOPHER COX, California CRAIG THOMAS, Wyoming ILEANA ROS-LEHTINEN, Florida RONALD K. MACHTLEY, Rhode Island DICK ZIMMER, New Jersey WILLIAM H. ZELIFF, Jk., New Hampehire DAVID L. HOBSON, Ohio SCOTT L. KLUG, Wisconain

BERNARD SANDERS, Vermont (Independent)

JULIAN EVENTRIN, Staff Director DONALD W. UPSON, Minority Staff Director

COMMERCE, CONSUMER, AND MONETARY AFFAIRS SUBCOMMITTEE

DOUG BARNARD, Jr., Georgia, Chairman

MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, California CARDISS COLLINS, Illinois HENRY A. WAXMAN, California BEN ERDREICH, Alabama ALBERT G. BUSTAMANTE, Texas J. DENNIS HASTERT, Hinois RONALD K. MACHTLEY, Roode Island DICK ZIMMER, New Jersey WILLIAM H. ZELIFF, Ja., New Hampshire

:

Ех Отгасто

JOHN CONYERS, Jr., Michigan

FRANK HORTON, New York

RICHARD W PATERSON, Staff Director Theodore J. Jacobs, Chief Counsel Donald P. Tucker, Chief Economist Stephen R. McStadden, Schur Counsel Jeffrey A. Tabsey, Counsel Faye Ballard, Clerk Sandra L. Knox, Assignat Clerk Thomas Thornton, Minority Professional Staff

 (\mathbf{n})

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, Washington, DC, December 6, 1991.

Hon. THOMAS S. FOLKY, Speaker of the House of Representatives, Washington, DC.

DEAR MR. SPEAKER: By direction of the Committee on Government Operations, I submit herewith the committee's eleventh report to the 102d Congress. The committee's report is based on a study made by its Commerce, Consumer, and Monetary Affairs Subcommittee.

JOHN CONVERS, Jr., Chairman.

(MTF

CONTENTS

	Page
I. Introduction and background	1
A. The mechanics of short selling	2
1. The individual short-sale transaction	- 2
2. Securities borrowing and lending	23
3. Expansion of total beneficial ownership	4
4. Expansion of tradeable shares	
5. Statistics on short interests in stocks	5
	5567789
B. Regulation of short selling	20
C. Subcommittee investigation and hearings	7
1. Company and investor complaints	- 7
2. Survey of companies	- 8
3. Subcommittee hearings	- 9
Analysis of American Stock Exchange surveillance report.	10
Study of SEC investigations of short-cale target companies	11
6. Analysis of NSCC fails data, December 1990	ii
7. Investigation of New York Stock Exchange proxy voting	
	12
Fules	12
II. The functional role of short selling	
III. Abuse and manipulation by short sellers	- 13
A. Credibility of abuse allegations	- 13
B. The psychological environment	- 14
C. The American Stock Exchange surveillance report	- 16
D. The role of the SEC	17
IV. The integrity of information about company affairs	ī9
V. Market efficiency and market information	20
A. Information about short-sale trading and share expansion	20
	- 40
B. The uptick rule as an instrument for improved information	21 23
C. Disclosure of material individual short positions	23
VI. Proxy voting in stocks sold short	24
A. The basic problem. B. Proxy failure under the NYSE proxy rules.	24 25 25
B. Proxy failure under the NYSE proxy rules	25
 Rule 451 ("Transmission of Proxy Material") 	25
2. Rule 452 ("Giving Proxies by Member Organization")	- 25
3. Failure to receive shares from clearing	27
4. Lack of equivalence between cash shares with broker-	-
dealer and shares owned of record	27
	28
5. Fair disclosure and customer deception	20
6. Broker discretion in the giving of proxies on contested	00
and material matters	28
C. Empirical significance and monitoring	29 29
 Empirical significance—the NYSE's information 	29
2. A plausible scenario	29
3. The absence of complaints	30
4. Adequacy of the Exchange's compliance monitoring	31
 Adequacy of the Exchange's compliance monitoring D. Proxy voting by short sellers	31
1. Prove voting in excess of investors' net beneficial owner.	
ship	31
2. Proxy manipulation through short sales	32
E. Froxy manipulation through short sales	24
E. Recommendations	$\frac{32}{33}$
1. Require full disclosure to beneficial owners	-13
2. Limit proxy rights to NET beneficial ownership	-83
Assure full proxy rights for cash account securities	34
Set uniform procedure for allocating remaining votes	- 34

 Require reporting of proxy failures Provide for recordkeeping and other procedures to verify compliance	35 35
APPENDIX	

Stocks with high short interest,	1986–90	37
----------------------------------	---------	----

Calendar No. 245

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Report 102-414

SHORT-SELLING ACTIVITY IN THE STOCK MARKET: MARKET EFFECTS AND THE NEED FOR REGULATION (PART 1)

DECEMBER 6, 1991.—Committee to the Committee of the Whole House on the State of the Union and ordered to be printed

Mr. CONVERS, from the Committee on Government Operations, submitted the following

ELEVENTH REPORT

BASED ON A STUDY BY THE COMMERCE, CONSUMER, AND MONETARY AFFAIRS SUBCOMMITTEE

On November 13, 1991, the Committee on Government Operations approved and adopted a report entitled "Short-Selling Activity in the Stock Market: Market Effects and the Need for Regulation (Part 1)." The chairman was directed to transmit a copy to the Speaker of the House.

I. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Short selling has been practiced in the Nation's securities markets for many years. It is not a recent innovation in finance. However, the effects of short selling on the securities markets are not widely understood. Moreover, strong criticism has been directed in recent years at the regulatory system by investors and by companies who believe that inadequate regulation has permitted substantial abuses to develop.

Although the basic practice of short selling is not new, it has taken on a new significance just recently. Modern innovations in the clearing and settlement of securities transactions and the widespread adoption of book entry recordkeeping systems have dramatically reduced the costs and increased the market opportunities for short-selling transactions. A new evaluation of how short selling fits into modern securities markets and whether the complaints being heard are valid is therefore needed.

48-630

For these reasons, the Commerce, Consumer, and Monetary Affairs Subcommittee of the House Committee on Government Operations has conducted an extensive investigation of short selling in the equity market. Three days of hearings were held in November and December 1989,1 a survey of affected companies was conducted in 1989, comprehensive tabulations of short interest statistics were compiled for the years 1986-90,° the securities clearing and settlement system has been closely studied, and numerous other aspects of short selling have been evaluated.

Certain elements of this investigation are still in progress. Consequently, the committee has not reached final conclusions and recommendations with respect to many of the questions that have been raised. The questions that are still under study are identified briefly in Section LC below.

This report represents, therefore, an interim statement of findings and conclusions. The recommendations presented in this report are firm and final, but they do not address several important issues that are still under investigation.

A. THE MECHANICS OF SHORT SELLING

1. The individual short-sale transaction

In a short-sale transaction, an investor places an order with a securities broker to sell shares of stock he or she does not own.³ If this order is executed by the broker, the investor will then be "short" this stock, meaning he or she will owe so many shares. This short position will appear as a liability item on the investor's account statement with the broker.

The purpose of such a trade is to make a profit if the stock price goes down. At some future time the investor buys back the same number of shares of stock, and if this purchase is at a lower price than the price of the short sale, the investor has made a profit:

The cash received from the short sale is credited to the investor's account but cannot initially be withdrawn in cash. In fact, the margin regulations of the Federal Reserve require that additional cash be deposited by the investor, or borrowed from the broker, to assure that the investor will be able to buy back the shares sold short to complete the transaction.⁴

Moreover, the investor may be required under the margin regulations to deposit additional cash (or borrow more from the broker)

¹ "Short-Selling Activity in the Stock Market: The Effects on Small Companies and the Need for Regulation," hearings before the Commerce, Consumer, and Monetary Affairs Subcommittee of the Committee on Government Operations, House of Representatives. November 28 and 29, and December 6, 1989. ² See appendix, "Stocks with High Short Interest, 1986–90," compiled by the subcommittee from short interest statistics and company data supplied by the New York Stock Exchange, American Stock Exchange, and National Association of Securities Dealers. ² Nove to a base based of the supplied by the Stock Exchange.

³ konds can also be sold abort, but this report deals only with short selling in the stock market. It is also possible to sell short securities that the investor does own, which may be done for tax purposes. This is called "shorting against the box," and represents a transaction done as if the investor did not own the securities.

[&]quot;The Federal Reserve's Regulation T specifies the amount of money that brokers can lend to their customers for the purchase of accurities "on margin," and it also specifies the additional cash "margin" that an investor must deposit or borrow in order to make a short sale. The present margin requirement on most short sales is 150 percent, meaning the broker must hold the proceeds of the sale (100 percent), and the investor must deposit or borrow un additional 50 percents. Short actions by avalance acceleration and market makes on percents also be percent. Short solos by exchange specialists and market makers, and proprietary short sales by self-clearing brokers, are exempt from this requirement.

at a later time if the price of the shares sold short increases after the short sale. If the investor is unable to provide the additional margin, the short position will be closed out by the broker, and the investor is charged for the cost of buying back the shares.

On the other hand, if the price of the stock in which the investor is short should decline, the investor's broker is permitted to release a corresponding portion of the cash margin and pay it out to the investor. If the price should decline to zero because the stock has become worthless, then the investor may get all his or her money out in cash without ever purchasing back the stock to close out the short position.

As long as his or her account has sufficient margin, the short investor may remain short indefinitely. There is no time limit on short investments. The only complication, other than insufficient margin, that could force an investor to close out a short position prematurely by buying back the shares would be when his or her broker is required to return shares that were borrowed at the time of the short sale, as described in the next section.

2. Securities borrowing and lending

Short selling normally requires that the short seller's broker must borrow securities. The purchaser of the shares in a short-sale transaction expects to receive delivery of the purchased shares, or at least the purchaser's broker must receive them in order to hold them for the purchaser, but the seller does not have them to start with. The seller's broker must therefore borrow shares to complete the transaction.

Securities lending for this purpose is highly organized, and usually the seller's broker has no problem borrowing the necessary shares, either from other customers' margin accounts or from another broker. Occasionally, however, the shares cannot be borrowed, in which case the broker is supposed to refuse to execute the customer's order to sell short.

The seller's broker does not actually borrow the necessary shares when the short-sale trade is executed, however. The shares are not borrowed until settlement of the transaction occurs, which is normally five business days later, and this time lag can allow a problem to develop. On the settlement date, the seller's broker may discover that shares are no longer available to be borrowed from the source that seemed to have shares available five days earlier.

If the seller's broker cannot borrow the shares on settlement day, then no shares are delivered to the buyer's broker. If the trade is processed through one of the major stock clearing organizations,⁵ as most now are, then no shares are delivered to the clearing organization. The short-sale trade is still a valid trade, but the seller's broker is merely late in delivering shares to complete the trade. This appears as a "fail-to-deliver" on the books of the selling broker.

^{*} The most important stock clearing organization is the National Securities Clearing Corp. or NSOC, headquartered in New York.

3. Expansion of total beneficial ownership

Short sales of equity shares generally have the effect of increasing the total number of shares of that company's stock owned beneficially by investors.⁶ In a short-sale transaction, the buyer adds to_ his or her holdings of this stock, while no other investor has sold shares he or she owned.

Of course, there is no increase in the shares outstanding shown on the records of the issuing corporation. As a consequence, the short sale creates a situation in which the total number of shares owned beneficially by investors exceeds the number of shares issued by the issuing corporation.

Securities lending by brokerage firms makes this possible. Brokers normally hold shares in custody for their customers, and the customers' investment holdings are reported to them on paper account statements from their brokers. When investors borrow money from their brokers on margin, as many investors do, they must sign an authorization permitting the broker to lend their shares or otherwise to pledge them as collateral for bank loans to finance the broker's lending. When a broker uses this lending authority to lend some customers' margin shares to a short seller, the broker ends up holding fewer shares of that stock in custody than the number of shares the customers own, as shown on their paper account statements.

The result of such short selling and securities lending, in the aggregate, is that brokers as a group do not hold record ownership of as many shares of such a stock as they and their customers own beneficially. This may be described as a situation of fractional reserve brokerage, where the "reserves" of record shares, of issued shares shown on the records of the issuing corporation, are only a fraction of the beneficially owned shares shown on the account statements of customers and in the brokers' own proprietary accounts.7

This process of nominal share expansion through securities lending and short sales is very similar in its mechanics to the process of money expansion through bank lending, which is familiar to students of economics. In both cases the public holds a major part of its holdings, its money balances and its securities, in book entry form only, in accounts with intermediary institutions.

In the case of banks, these book entry holdings, the bank checking and savings accounts, show more money in total belonging to the depositors than the banks hold in their vaults or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Banks. The bank reserves are only a small fraction of depositors' total bank balances on paper.

The same thing is now happening in securities brokerage firms. The total shares belonging to investors on paper, in their brokerage

^{*} If the purchaser of the shares sold short uses the purchased shares to close out a short pusi-

tion, then there is no increase in investors' total holdings of this stock. ¹ This analysis assumes either (a) that shares are delivered by the short-selling broker (i) from among the shares already hold for customers or the firm's proprietary accounts or (ii) from shares borrowed from another broker's pool of lendship shares or (b) that shares are not delivered by the short-celling broker. An exception to this analysis occurs if all short seles in an issue have been settled by delivery of shares borrowed under special agreements from bank trust accounts or other matitutional or individual portfolios of directly held shares.

accounts, exceed the total reserves of registered or issued shares in the custody of the brokers when short sales have occurred.

It is not possible, however, for all investors to convert their shareholdings, as shown in their brokerage accounts, into stock certificates when such a share expansion has occurred. If all investors holding shares of a particular stock in their brokerage accounts tried to convert their holdings into stock certificates, brokers who had loaned out shares to short sellers would be forced to recall the loans to get the shares back. This, in turn, would force the short sellers who had borrowed the shares to buy back the shares in order to return the borrowed shares.

If the short sellers are able to buy back enough shares—that is, if enough investors who first wanted stock certificates are willing to sell their shares instead—then the remaining investors who do not sell can get stock certificates. In this case, the total shares held by investors will have contracted enough so that it matches the brokers' reserves of issued shares in their custody.

However, sometimes short sellers are not able to buy back the necessary shares at a reasonable price, and a short squeeze results. All investors holding this stock are refusing to sell except possibly at a very high price, and when this happens regulatory intervention or court action may be needed to resolve the situation. As long as this short squeeze remains in effect, however, it is not possible for all the investors holding this stock in their accounts to obtain stock certificates for their holdings.

4: Expansion of tradeable shares

The expansion of book entry holdings of shares by investors when short selling has occurred also represents an expansion of tradeable shares in the market. Every investor whose brokerage account shows that he holds a certain stock may sell that stock immediately, regardless of whether his or her broker is holding enough shares in custody on that day to make delivery of all the shares sold by customers from their accounts. The rules of the stock exchanges and of the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD), which regulates over-the-counter trading, do not place any limits on the entry of sell orders just because a broker's reserves of shares in custody are less than what that broker's customers want to sell.

5. Statistics on short interests in stocks

The New York and American Stock Exchanges and the NASD compile monthly statistics on the aggregate short security positions reported by brokers and dealers. These statistics, which are released to the press and the public, list hundreds of companies whose stock has been sold short in significant volume by investors. Short selling, and the resulting share expansion, are thus very widespread phenomena.

To provide further information on the scale of short selling and share expansion, the subcommittee has compared the short interest statistics reported monthly by the exchanges and NASD with the individual companies' total shares outstanding.⁶ The purpose of this analysis was to identify cases in which the share expansion through short selling was at least 5 percent of a company's shares. The appendix contains a listing compiled by the subcommittee showing 695 companies for which the short interest in their stock was at least 5 percent of the company's total shares outstanding at some time during the years 1986-90.

For 280 of these companies the short interest exceeded 10 percent of shares outstanding at its maximum, and for a smaller but still significant number the share expansion through short selling was over 20 percent.

B. REGULATION OF SHORT SELLING

Short selling is regulated under both Federal agency regulations and under certain rules of the stock exchanges and the NASD.

As described above, the Federal Reserve's margin regulations require a short seller to post a certain amount of additional cashmargin, and to maintain afterward an appropriate amount of cashmargin. This limits the amount of short selling an individual investor can do, based on his or her financial resources.

Certain Securities and Exchange Commission rules set important limits on short selling. SEC Rule 10a-1 (the "uptick rule") prohibits short sales of exchange-listed stocks except on or after a price "uptick." That is, the short seller must find a buyer who will pay at least one-eighth point more than the last sale price, or who will pay the same as the last sale price if the last change in the sale price of this stock was an increase. In theory, this rule is intended to prevent short selling from continually driving down the price of a stock, but evasion of this rule is possible, especially through overseas trading in stocks that can be traded in London, Tokyo, or other overseas markets. Moreover, this rule does not apply to stocks that are traded over-the-counter or in the NASDAQ system of the National Association of Securities Dealers. The NASD has proposed a similar uptick rule for NASDAQ trading, but has not taken final action to implement such a rule.

SEC Rule 15c3-3 sets important limits on the extent of securities lending. Except under special written agreements applicable to a particular stock, a broker may lend out only those customer shares that serve as collateral for the money the customers have borrowed from the broker on margin. The rule limits this to stocks having a value of no more than 140 percent of the amount borrowed. Therefore, if few brokerage customers are holding a particular stock in margin accounts—that is, if most investors have paid in full for their holdings of this stock and are holding it in cash accounts or in certificate form—then it may be difficult or impossible for brokers to borrow this stock. In this case normal short sales of this stock, in which borrowed shares are delivered to the buyer, may not be possible.

⁴ A company's "total shares outstanding" (TSO) is the quantity of shares it has usued and sold to investors. This number of shares is available in certificate form. The term is misleading, however, because this number does not reflect any additional book entry shares created when short selling occurs. A company's TSO is therefore less than the total of investors' holdings of this stock when short selling has occurred.

SEC Rule 10b-21 prohibits short sellers from closing out a short position with shares received in a secondary offering of shares by the company. This does not directly regulate short selling itself, but it seeks to control a short-selling abuse in which investors would use short sales to drive down the price of a stock just prior to a new offering of shares, and would then close out their short position with shares obtained in the offering at the lower price they had forced the company to accept.

The New York and American Stock Exchanges and the NASD have rules that require a broker to determine, at the time a customer enters a short-sale order, that the appropriate number of shares are available to be borrowed to cover the short sale. The broker must locate the required shares before executing the short sale for the customer.

The NASD also has recently received final SEC approval of a "buy-in" rule, which provides that a broker whose customer requests a certificate for NASDAQ securities that he or she has purchased must force a buy-in of the necessary shares for cash or guaranteed delivery, at the expense of the seller's broker, if the customer's shares are not otherwise received through normal trade settlement procedures. Such a buy-in would typically only become necessary in cases where the broker handling a short sale is unable to borrow the necessary shares for delivery to the purchaser.

The NASD has also proposed, but has not received final SEC approval to implement, a "closeout" rule for short sales. This rule, if implemented, will require brokers, under certain circumstances, to close out customer short positions if delivery of the shares sold short has not been made by a certain number of days after the normal settlement date. There is no similar rule governing the delivery of shares sold short on the New York or American Stock Exchanges.

These rules typically provide blanket exceptions for short selling by exchange specialists and over-the-counter market makers. Specialists and market makers are generally permitted to engage in short selling on substantially more liberal terms than other investors.

C. SUBCOMMITTEE INVESTIGATION AND HEARINGS

1. Company and investor complaints

For years, investors and company executives (who are often major shareholders also) have complained about short-selling abuses. Many recent press reports of abuses, as well as other press features that dispute the reports of abuse, are reprinted in Appendix 9 of the printed subcommittee hearing record.

Many of the complaints have alleged that short sellers, after establishing a major short position in a particular stock, have aggressively circulated false rumors about the company's financial condition, problems with its products, or the health or integrity of its officers in an effort to drive down the stock price. It has also been frequently alleged that some elements of the press assist and cooperate with short sellers by printing very negative stories about the companies the short sellers have targeted. In many cases short sellers are alleged to have contacted directly a company's major suppliers, customers, lenders, and institutional shareholders, often anonymously or under false pretenses, to aggressively suggest false or misleading "facts" about the company.

Other complaints have alleged that "naked" short selling has been employed to manipulate and drive down the price of a stock improperly. Short selling in which shares are not borrowed and are not delivered to the buyer is called naked short selling. This practice was described in a *Forbes* article in February 1988.⁹

Some complaints have been directed at the SEC. The SEC, it is alleged, is "soft" on short-seller abuse and fails to pursue cases of false rumors, even when the purpose of the false rumors is price manipulation. Some complaints have even alleged that the SEC actively assists short sellers by conducting investigations of companies in the stock of which short sellers have accumulated large short investments. These investigations assist short sellers because public announcement of such an investigation often causes other investors to sell such a stock, thereby driving down the price.

2. Survey of companies

In May and June 1989 the subcommittee mailed a questionnaire letter to approximately 200 companies that had had the short interest in their stock reach a ratio of at least 10 percent of their public float of shares at some time in the period from December 1986 through April 1989. (In the case of New York Stock Exchange listed companies, the subcommittee could not obtain float data and therefore compared the short interest of each company to its total shares outstanding.) The letter contained a series of questions asking what practical effect the short selling and the related activities of short sellers had had on the company, whether the company had experienced any disruptions or distortions of the proxy voting process, and how the company felt about three suggested changes in the regulation of short selling. The three regulatory ideas proposed in this letter were (i) mandatory public reporting of their short positions by short sellers if their positions exceed some percentage of a company's outstanding shares; (ii) an uptick rule for short sales of NASDAQ stocks; and (iii) a mandatory buy-in rule to reduce naked short selling.

The subcommittee received a total of 68 responses, for a response rate of about 34 percent. Thirty companies reported no problems or complaints arising from short-selling activity, while 38 reported problems of various sorts. Several of those reporting no problems had very substantial short positions arising from hedging or arbitrage transactions involving convertible securities, but did not feel there was any need to complain.

Widespread circulation of false rumors around the time of heavy short-sale activity was cited by 21 companies as a serious problem. They generally reported that these rumor problems, at the very least, made it necessary for company officials to devote inordinate amounts of time to reassuring stockholders, regulators, customers,

[&]quot;Naked came the short-sellers," by Phyllis Berman and Ronit Addis, Forbes, February 8, 1983.

and sources of debt financing, who were often seriously unsettled by the reports being circulated.

Thirteen companies characterized the short-sellers' activities as involving improper interference with their relationships with customers, major shareholders, suppliers, banks, etc. Generally they complained of numerous phone calls, often anonymous, to these parties from "analysts" attempting to suggest very negative, frequently false, conclusions.

Only a small number of companies asserted that naked short selling was a significant problem. Most companies responded that they had no factual basis for determining whether naked short selling was a problem because they could not obtain the necessary data from their exchange or the NASD.

No companies reported any complaints related to shareholder proxies.

Many companies that reported specific complaints also expressed the view that short selling is a legitimate market practice and that the only need is to curb specific abuses.

Out of the 68 substantive replies received, 37 commented in some manner on one or more of the three policy ideas suggested in the letter. Public reporting of large individual short positions was supported in 32 of the responses and opposed in 2. Imposing an uptick rule for short sales of NASDAQ stocks was supported in 22 responses (13 from OTC companies), and opposed in 3. A mandatory buy-in rule or some other step to prohibit naked short selling was supported in 34 responses and opposed in 2.

In addition, various rule changes to assure informed consent by investors whose shares are lent to short sellers were suggested by seven companies.

3. Subcommittee hearings

In order to hear testimony on the allegations of short-seller abuse and on the programs of the SEC and the self-regulatory organizations (SROs)16 for controlling abusive practices, the Commerce, Consumer, and Monetary Affairs Subcommittee held three days of hearings in November and December 1989.11 On November 28, the subcommittee heard testimony from three company executives whose companies had been the targets of short selling and who reported abusive practices by short sellers. The subcommittee also heard testimony from two industry experts who gave a broader overview of short selling and its abuses, and it received for the record a statement from Joseph Feshbach of Feshbach Brothers, a major short-selling investment partnership, commenting on the issues the subcommittee had raised.

On December 29, the subcommittee heard testimony from John Guion, of the National Association of OTC Companies,12 and from the New York and American Stock Exchanges and the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD). Mr. Guion reported on a survey his organization had conducted among 1,000 public compa-

³⁰ The stock exchanges and the NASD are self-regulatory organizations with substantial delegated responsibility for regulating equation trading and other unpects of the equities market. ¹¹ Subcommittee hearings, op cit. ¹² Currently the Association of Publicly Traded Companies, APTC.

nies concerning their experience with short-selling abuses and their views regarding possible regulatory improvements, from which he concluded that there is very widespread support among public companies for fuller disclosure of short-selling activity. He reported the intention of his organization to recommend to the SEC a new public reporting rule applicable to any individual short seller who accumulates a short position equal to 5 percent or more of a company's total shares outstanding.

Edward Kwalwasser, representing the New York Stock Exchange, and Stephen Lister, representing the American Stock Exchange, described the role of the SEC's uptick rule in suppressing "bear raids" by short sellers and the manner in which the Exchanges, through various rules, control the spreading of misleading rumors and prohibit naked short selling. They both expressed skepticism regarding the subcommittee's concern that shareholders might lose proxy voting rights when broker-dealer firms lend customers' shares to short sellers. Mr. Lister also expressed concern that there might he unintended adverse effects from requiring public reporting of large individual short positions.

John Pinto and Gene Finn, testifying for the NASD, described the NASD's recent and proposed rule changes for strengthening their controls over naked short selling and other short-selling abuses. They opposed the extension of the SEC's uptick rule to NASDAQ trading, basing their analysis in part of a major study of short-selling regulation that had recently been completed by Irving Pollack, a former SEC Commissioner and senior regulatory official.¹³ They also commented briefly on several other regulatory issues related to short selling.

Richard Ketchum, Director of the SEC's Division of Market Regulation, and John Sture, Associate Director of the SEC's Division of Enforcement, presented the testimony of the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 6. They described at length the regulatory and enforcement programs of the SEC as they apply to short selling, and their prepared testimony also included detailed responses to a number of questions the subcommittee had submitted in advance. On the question of extending the uptick rule to NASDAQ securities, the SEC position was that they did not believe a need for this rule change had been demonstrated, but the SEC would continue to study the merits of this proposal. Regarding the proposal for public reporting of large individual short positions, they stated that the SEC does not favor public reporting that reveals potentially sensitive trading strategies, and furthermore that the SEC lacks authority to impose such a requirement without legislation.

4. Analysis of American Stock Exchange surveillance report

In 1987 the American Stock Exchange (ASE) investigated company allegations of possible manipulative activity in connection with short selling in the securities of three ASE-listed companies. The Exchange prepared and submitted to the SEC a lengthy surveillance report dated November 6, 1987, in which the Exchange re-

^{** &}quot;Short-Sale Regulation of NASDAQ Securities," by Irving M. Pollack, National Association of Securities Dealers, 1986.

ported finding no evidence of manipulation but recommended further inquiry by the SEC. The SEC provided a copy of this report to the subcommittee immediately prior to the 1989 hearings, with a request that it be treated as a confidential document because of its detailed data on individual security trades by certain individuals.

Following the hearings the subcommittee analyzed the surveillance report in substantial detail in order to evaluate the thoroughness of the American Exchange investigation.

5. Study of SEC investigations of short-sale target companies.

Following the hearings the subcommittee inquired of the SEC by letter what percentages of formal investigations and informal inquiries opened by the SEC to investigate companies for accounting fraud or other fraudulent public disclosures involved companies where a short interest existed, at the time the Commission began its inquiry, of at least 5 percent of the company's total shares outstanding. The purpose of the subcommittee inquiry was to attempt to verify company complaints that the SEC often assisted short sellers by investigating companies that the short sellers had identified as targets.

The SEC responded that they did not have the necessary information in their possession to respond to this inquiry. The SEC did offer, however, to permit subcommittee staff to view listings of SEC formal and informal investigations opened regarding suspected cases of the sort specified by the subcommittee.

A subcommittee staff person therefore compiled from these SEC listings and from the published monthly short interest reports released by the NASD the necessary data to prepare a partial answer to the question. The compilation prepared by the subcommittee covers SEC investigations of NASDAQ companies opened between March 1988 and March 1989.

6. Analysis of NSCC fails data, December 1990

In order to investigate company allegations of naked short selling, the subcommittee requested from the National Securities Clearing Corporation daily tabulations of clearing shorts (failures to deliver securities by settlement date) and clearing longs (failures to receive securities by settlement date) for every trading day in December 1990. The subcommittee received daily data from NSCC showing clearing shorts that aggregated at least 10,000 shares in a given equity issue and that were due from selling brokers who had been short in that issue for at least 5 trading days. The subcommittee also received data showing daily clearing longs on a comparable hasis.

The subcommittee then prepared summary tabulations from the data provided by NSCC. These tabulations show individual stocks in which the clearing short position at NSCC that was due from brokers who had been continuously short for at least 10 days averaged at least 20,000 shares throughout the entire month of December. The subcommittee compared these cases of substantial and persistent clearing shorts with the publicly reported investor short interest statistics for December 1990.

In these tabulations the subcommittee identified 31 New York Stock Exchange issues, 28 American Stock Exchange issues, 129 NASDAQ issues, and 54 issues the subcommittee could not identify as to market but which appeared to be non-NASDAQ over-thecounter issues. Many of the issues shown in these tabulations also were reported as having substantial investor short positions in the monthly statistical reports as of December 15, and several were issues that had been reported in the press as the targets of professional short sellers. Several others were the stocks of companies that have expressed complaints about short-selling abuse.

The subcommittee then, in March 1991, requested evaluations from the SEC, the New York and American Stock Exchanges, and the NASD as to whether the persistent clearing fails shown in the tabulations reflected naked short selling, and if not what other factors accounted for such persistent and substantial clearing fails.

The SEC has not responded to this inquiry. The New York Exchange has tentatively reported apparent rule violations in three cases but has not completed its review of the matter. The American Exchange reported finding instances of failure to deliver shares after both long sales and short sales but determined that most of the cases examined did not represent rule violations or naked short selling. The NASD did not find significant rule violations or naked short selling.

The subcommittee has not completed its investigation of these findings of substantial and persistent clearing fails in issues subject to active short selling but expects to be able to report on this investigation in 1992.

7. Investigation of New York Stock Exchange proxy voting rules

The subcommittee has been concerned from the beginning of its short-selling investigation that legitimate short selling might have unintended and potentially adverse effects on investors' proxy voting rights. The SEC and the SROs expressed the judgment in their hearing testimony that the subcommittee's concerns were unfounded. The subcommittee determined, nevertheless, to investigate this question more deeply in late 1990, and in conducting this aspect of its investigation the subcommittee has corresponded at length with the New York Stock Exchange during 1990 and 1991.

In this correspondence the NYSE has confirmed the subcommittee's basic supposition that short selling may occasionally lead to an inability on the part of brokerage firms to honor the proxy voting instructions of their customers. The subcommittee's analysis of this issue appears in Section VI.

IL THE FUNCTIONAL ROLE OF SHORT SELLING

The committee finds that short selling has an important and constructive functional rule in the equity market.

As an investment opportunity, short selling enables investors with negative evaluations of particular individual stocks to invest their funds so as to profit if their evaluations prove to be correct. In doing this, short sellers bring into the pricing structure of the market a balancing influence. Their negative evaluations of stocks then play a role, along with the positive evaluations of other investors who hold the same stock long in their portfolios, in determining the market price of this stock. This participation by short sellers thereby tends to enhance the efficiency of the market pricing mechanism.

The committee finds it highly significant that, among the many market participants and issuers who have complained of shortseller abuse, virtually none have held the position that short selling as an investment practice is bad or should be stopped. On the contrary, many emphasized to the subcommittee their conviction that short selling, per se, is entirely legitimate and constructive, if done according to the rules. The committee shares this conviction.

Their complaints, and consequently the subcommittee's investigative efforts, have focused on questions of improving the shortselling mechanism and curtailing related abuses, so that short selling can most effectively serve its legitimate function in the market.

III. ABUSE AND MANIPULATION BY SHORT SELLERS

A. CREDIBILITY OF ABUSE ALLEGATIONS

The subcommittee's investigation of short selling has included extensive review of the allegations of short-seller abuse offered by affected issuers and investors or reported in the press. In addition to the widespread press reports, allegations of abuse were reported by witnesses in the subcommittee's hearings, by issuers who responded to the subcommittee's questionnaire, and by other issuers and investors in numerous unsolicited off-the-record contacts with the subcommittee. The subcommittee did not, however, attempt independent verification of their accuracy through field investigation.

Because of the lack of independent investigation and verification, the committee has not made any findings that certain of these allegations were conclusively demonstrated to be true. The committee cannot, therefore, report documentation of specific incidents of abuse by short sellers.

The committee has found, however, that many of the reports of rumor-spreading abuse are entirely credible and are strongly suggestive of abuse. Moreover, the widespread nature of these reports and the high degree of similarity among them constitute a highly consistent pattern. The committee finds, therefore, that a pattern of abusive and destructive rumormongering, targeted specifically at companies in the equity securities of which some short-selling investors have established major short positions, appears to be occurring.

Other reports have alleged direct price manipulation or other trading abuses by short sellers in the trading of target companies' shares. Many of these reports have alleged that certain parties were engaging in naked short selling, presumably with the cooperation of a major broker or dealer.

None of the reports of naked short selling were supported with direct evidence, and in its evaluation of these reports the subcommittee found the circumstantial evidence offered to be inconclusive. The charges of naked short selling do raise important questions of the proper functioning of the markets, however, and the subcommittee has therefore initiated a study of clearing and settlement delays and their relationship to short selling, as reported previously. This study has not been completed, but the evidence examined so far suggests that naked short selling or its functional equivalent does occur in large volume in some equity issues. The committee does tentatively conclude, therefore, that the reports of naked short selling offered by issuers and other investors, while lacking direct supporting evidence, may nevertheless be true in some instances.

Other allegations of direct price manipulation by short sellers have appeared to the subcommittee to lack substance. For this reason the committee has concluded that, aside from the reports of spreading false rumors and engaging in naked short selling, many of the complaints about short-seller abuse are not soundly based and may reflect a misunderstanding of the short-selling process.

B. THE PSYCHOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENT

The committee's principal concern in its evaluation of short-selling issues has been broader than just whether specific abuses and violations have occurred and are being regulated. The committee is particularly concerned with whether:

a. The equity market functions fairly for investors who invest in the shares of companies that are actively sold short by other investors; and

b. Whether the equity market prices such stocks efficiently and appropriately so that these companies will continue to have access to the market for new capital on a sound and fair competitive basis.

The committee has found, in this connection, that the fairness and efficiency of the equity market for stocks that are actively targeted by short sellers suffer from serious disturbances that cannot be attributed solely to specific instances of short-seller abuse.

The pricing and trading of individual equity issues are highly dependent on subjective elements of psychology and perception among investors generally, and the committee finds that many investors and issuers have a perception that short sellers have great manipulative power over stocks. Moreover, the committee finds a widespread perception, expressed in many ways to the subcommittee, that the SEC is indifferent to the manipulative activities of the short sellers and assists them indirectly by their attitude of indifference.

The psychological environment is further affected by the fact that major short-selling investors function entirely anonymously. Under present reporting rules it cannot be known, except through a special investigation by the SEC, the exchanges, or the NASD, who is holding the major short positions in a particular stock.

The committee finds a strong undercurrent of disillusionment with the public equity markets and with the SEC in the viewpoints expressed by many investors and issuers whose shares are targeted by short sellers. Among these investors and issuers there appears to be a sense of being victimized by powerful but unknown abusers who do their will without restraint from any regulators. If these were isolated views, they might not be significant, but the committee finds them sufficiently prevalent to constitute a troubling pattern. In some instances, as reported previously, the targets of short selling appear to have drawn conclusions about the manipulative power of short sellers without a solid factual basis, but this tendency of many investors to draw such unfounded conclusions is the fundamental reason for concern about the psychological climate.

The fact is that some short-selling partnerships possess very substantial financial resources and a capacity, financially speaking, to influence heavily or even dominate the trading activity in a small capitalization issue of stock over an extended period of time. When this general fact is combined in the minds of company executives and shareholders with the information that some unknown but presumably powerful party or parties is or are actively short selling a particular stock-and when these executives and shareholders also share a conviction that the SEC ignores abusive practices by the short sellers and does not ensure a fair market—it is readily understandable that these executives and shareholders of the affected issuer may reach exaggerated and ill-founded conclusions about the short-selling "threat." When such exaggerated reactions to active short selling become frequent and persistent, as the committee believes they have in many stock issues, then pricing efficiency and market fairness suffer.

Moreover, the impairment of pricing efficiency affects not just the immediate targets of short sellers but the entire class of firms, many of them small but some large as well, that are viewed in the investing community as potentially vulnerable to short-seller abuse. Given the perceived power of anonymous short sellers to manipulate the market, it is only ordinary prudence to many investors to avoid such issues altogether, which in turn unjustifiably depresses the pricing of such issues relative to others perceived as less vulnerable.

This analysis of pricing inefficiency would not be valid if short sellers do in fact possess the great capacity to manipulate prices and hurt companies that is widely attributed to them. That is, if these investor evaluations of the short-selling threat are soundly based and relatively accurate on average (i.e., statistically unbiased), then the resulting effects on pricing could be compatible with efficient market functioning. The foundation of this analysis of probable pricing inefficiency is that, on the contrary, the psychological environment surrounding short selling has led investors to systematically overestimate the manipulative power of short sellers. Although there appear to have been some cases of serious abuse with a potential for significant price distortions on individual issues, the committee does not believe, as a general matter, that short sellers possess the extraordinary manipulative power that is widely attributed to them.

This is precisely the environment in which improved public information is clearly needed. While not necessarily providing a complete solution, better public information is the natural first remedy for such difficulties. By injecting factual clarity, it reduces the scope for fear based on imaginative speculations and unfounded assumptions. The issue of improved public information is discussed in Sections IV and V below.

C. THE AMERICAN STOCK EXCHANGE SURVEILLANCE REPORT

In 1987 the American Stock Exchange received complaints from three companies that holders of short positions were engaged in downside manipulation of the company's stock. Each company reported that it was the target of malicious negative rumors which, it felt, were being spread by the short sellers as part of a scheme to depress the price of its stock. In addition, many negative press stories had appeared about these companies, notably in Barron's.

The American Exchange's Surveillance Department conducted investigations into the short selling of each company's stock. It compiled detailed trading data on these companies' stocks for certain study periods that ranged from 3 to 12 weeks and attempted to determine whether any of the short sellers had engaged in price manipulation in their trading during the study periods.

The trading data compiled in the investigation and the Exchange's findings were reported to the SEC. In each case, the Exchange concluded that none of the information it gathered revealed evidence of manipulation by short sellers. However, it stated that it could not determine whether certain principal short sellers had acted in concert. Moreover, since most of the principal short sellers were not members of the Exchange and therefore not subject to the Exchange's jurisdiction, it stated that the Exchange could not do a thorough investigation of the short-sellers' activities. It submitted the report to the SEC with a recommendation that the SEC should further investigate the activities of the short sellers to determine whether the short sellers had acted in concert to depress the stock prices.

The Exchange also made a limited attempt to evaluate the companies' claims of false rumors, but this work did not represent a thorough investigation. In its report the Exchange concluded that the charges of false rumors were a subject for the SEC to deal with. In particular, it recommended that the SEC should determine whether there had been any improper contact between the short sellers and the press.

The SEC did some additional investigation after it received the surveillance report. This included contacting the companies and the stock analysts that followed the companies, as well as searching various databases for negative articles or other information about the companies. Although it found negative articles from its database searches, the SEC said it did not find any articles which contained materially false information about the companies. In describing its response to the American Exchange's recommendation for further investigation, the SEC stated to the subcommittee that it found no indication of illegal activity by the short sellers in these cases and, moreover, that the SEC had brought action against one of the companies involved for improper accounting methods.

The subcommittee found, on close study of the Exchange's surveillance report, that the report contained both statistical discrepancies and unexplained information gaps. When questioned, the Exchange attributed the statistical discrepancies to human error but was unable to explain why certain information requested from one broker was never received. More importantly, the study periods selected by the Exchange for the three stocks did not correspond to the months when the reported short interest for these stocks was highest, or to the build-up of the short interest figures to their highest levels. Moreover, in the case of two stocks, high volume trading days occurred in the week immediately prior or subsequent to the study periods but were excluded from the study periods.

Finally, the Exchange's evaluation of the extensive trading data that was assembled lacked focus. It was never clearly stated what pattern they were looking for or what pattern would have raised concerns about manipulation. For this reason and because of the inadequacies cited above, the committee, while acknowledging the extensive effort of the Exchange, questions the effectiveness of its surveillance examination.

Moreover, the inadequacies found by the subcommittee should have been evident to the SEC but apparently were never detected. The committee finds, therefore, that the SEC's response and followup to the American Exchange surveillance report were superficial and did not represent a serious effort to investigate the company charges of manipulation by short sellers.

D. THE ROLE OF THE SEC

The Securities and Exchange Commission is responsible for enforcing the antifraud and antimanipulation provisions of the securities laws, and agency witnesses testified in the subcommittee's hearings that the agency performs this responsibility vigorously when evidence of illegal behavior by short sellers is brought to their attention. In support of this the agency testimony cited certain enforcement cases brought by the Commission where the behavior of short sellers was challenged.

Other witnesses questioned the adequacy of the SEC's efforts to control short-seller abuses, however. Moreover, several company officials have told privately of bringing complaints of short-seller abuse to the SEC without any apparent SEC action resulting. Some company officials even reported to the subcommittee that, after they brought their complaints to the SEC, the SEC turned around and investigated their own companies groundlessly for suspected accounting fraud, public disclosure violations, or other matters, without over bringing formal charges.

The SEC has never, as far as the committee is aware, brought an enforcement case or even sought seriously to investigate a case in which the central allegation of abuse was the malicious dissemination of false or unverifiable negative reports about a public company, its officers, its products, or other matters that, if true or believed by investors, would be likely to influence negatively the trading price of the company's stock.

For this reason, the committee finds substantial basis for concern that the SEC's policing of the fairness of the markets in this respect may not be adequate.

The committee's concern regarding this aspect of the SEC's enforcement program is further heightened by the prepared testimony of Mr. Sture for the SEC's Division of Enforcement. In explaining why the SEC has not found it practical to bring enforcement cases against short sellers in most instances, he stated: Finally, many of the complaints we receive about alleged illegal short selling come from companies and corporate officers who are themselves under investigation by the Commission or others for possible violations of the securities and other laws. When there is an obvious economic justification for short sales, it is extremely difficult to prove:

(ii) the material false statement/omission and fraudulent intent requirements of Rule 10b-5. This is particularly true in those situations where, for example, our investigation tends to show that at the time when short sellers were allegedly disseminating false rumors, in fact, the issuer was disseminating materially false financial statements.¹⁴

This statement by Mr. Sture has the appearance of a de facto "no-action" assurance to short sellers concerning any actions they may take to disseminate false rumors about companies that are the object of SEC fraud investigations. Moreover, since the SEC does not bring formal charges against the company in many of the cases where it initiates an investigation, this statement represents a policy of ignoring possible cases of abuse by short sellers on the basis of unproven and potentially untrue suppositions about company behavior. The committee finds this policy very disturbing.

Finally, the committee finds that there has been an uncomfortably close direct working relationship between certain unknown short sellers and the SEC enforcement staff. Mr. Sturc acknowledged in the subcommittee hearing that the SEC staff "listen" when short sellers make allegations that a company is doing something wrong, because the short-sellers' information is often accurate.¹⁵ Short sellers, in other words, frequently provide useful enforcement tips to the SEC staff.

That the SEC staff does frequently act on the tips provided by short sellers may also be inferred from a statistical survey the subcommittee staff conducted, with SEC cooperation, of SEC investigations of NASDAQ companies for accounting fraud or other fraudulent public disclosures during the period March 1989 through March 1990. During this period 24 percent of the formal investigations opened involving NASDAQ companies, and 17 percent of the informal investigations opened involving NASDAQ companies, were investigations targeted at companies in which the reported short interest in the company stock immediately prior to the opening of the investigation was at least 5 percent of the public float in that company's stock. That is, substantial percentages of all SEC investigations of NASDAQ companies during this period were investigations of short-seller targets.

The subcommittee does not find anything inherently improper in this pattern of enforcement investigations by the SEC. This pattern does, nevertheless, raise a troubling question. The question is whether the SEC's selection of investigation targets is biased in a manner that provides unwarranted assistance to the short sellers.

¹⁴ Subcommittee hearings, op. cit., p. 435.

^{**} Subcommittee hearings, op. cit., p. 515 -

The knowledge in the market that a company is the object of an SEC investigation for possible fraud is generally expected to disappoint or alarm investors and to directly cause a decline in the company's stock price. The opening of such SEC investigations after short sellers have established substantial short positions in the target companies' securities is therefore very beneficial to the short sellers. For this reason the SEC needs to exercise extreme caution in opening investigations of short-seller target companies, especially on the basis of tips from the short sellers, in order to guard against any appearance of bias favoring the short sellers.

Regardless of the appropriateness, from an enforcement perspective, of the investigations opened regarding possible fraud by shortseller target companies, the de facto working relationship between short sellers and the SEC enforcement staff has the effect of providing bounties to the short sellers for their enforcement tips when the enforcement investigations become known in the market. In this context, the committee finds it highly improper that the SEC staff should also exempt from any enforcement scrutiny the behavior of the short sellers whose tips they determine to act on, as Mr. Sturc testified.

IV. THE INTEGRITY OF INFORMATION ABOUT COMPANY AFFAIRS

Accurate and timely information for investors is essential for a fair and efficient securities market. The unchallenged and unpunished circulation of false or misleading reports about company affairs is very destructive of fair markets. It discourages long-term investors from committing their funds to companies that have been made the targets of information distortions, and in this way it impairs and may even destroy these companies' access to the equity market for new capital.

The SEC does not take an evenhanded and balanced approach toward information integrity in the equity market. The SEC vigorously investigates suspected cases of misleading or false information released by company officials about their own companies, which is entirely proper regulatory scrutiny, but the SEC does not employ equal vigor on the other side. The SEC has not committed itself to a policy of suppressing false or manipulative rumor circulation by parties seeking to discredit a company or its officers or products, and it has not displayed any such commitment in practice through its enforcement program.

Small companies are especially vulnerable to campaigns of intentional distortion about their company affairs, for two reasons. First, they lack the resources usually available to a larger company to conduct an expensive information campaign to combat false rumors directly. Second, knowledge of their affairs among the financial press and among securities professionals, who may be able to evaluate false charges critically and render a constructive independent judgment, is generally much less widespread than in the case of large companies.

The SEC should adopt a formal policy and administrative program for improving the integrity of information flows about public companies, especially smaller companies. This program should include a commitment of resources to vigorous investigation of suspected cases of dissemination of false information or of unverifiable information under false pretenses (such as impersonation of company officers or regulatory authorities). The SEC should also evaluate the adequacy of the enforcement authority at its disposal for controlling information distortions about public companies, and should advise Congress of its recommendations for additional authority, if needed.

This commitment by the SEC is needed in part to provide greater confidence to investors that they can commit their funds to investments in small company stocks without excessive vulnerability to abusive information distortion by short sellers. A commitment of this nature by the SEC is needed to dissipate the unhealthy psychological atmosphere, referred to above, that adversely affects the markets for many stock issues in which there is substantial shortselling activity.

V. MARKET EFFICIENCY AND MARKET INFORMATION

A. INFORMATION ABOUT SHORT-SALE TRADING AND SHARE EXPANSION

In any asset market, expansion in the supply of a particular asset that investors must hold will normally drive down the price, at least temporarily. Only when there is a perfectly elastic demand for that asset, which is extremely rare in the stock market, will price be unaffected when the supply expands. An abrupt supply change, in particular, can be disruptive if it takes place without prior announcement and without advance preparation of the market.

The distribution of new shares of stock into the equity market through a company offering of new shares represents the kind of supply expansion that can be disruptive if done abruptly without prior warning. For this reason, among others, elaborate disclosure rules have been put in place so that investors are able to be fully informed about what is going on when a company sells new shares in this manner. Investors are thereby able to have a fuller understanding of the factors underlying any price decline or increased trading volume they may see in a stock in which a distribution of new shares is taking place or is planned.

Short selling causes a similar share expansion, as explained above. New investors must be induced to purchase the shares being offered by short sellers, or existing shareholders must be induced to increase their holdings, so that the increased quantity of shares can be absorbed. An unannounced share expansion that arises from short selling can therefore be just as disruptive to market pricing as an unannounced distribution of new company shares would be.

The recent price behavior and trading volume in a stock convey information to other investors in the market. The information that is conveyed is different, however, if new shares are being distributed by short sellers than if existing stockholders are selling their positions.

Shareholders who sell generally do not seek to profit from a further decline in the stock price, and they may not expect any decline. They may merely need cash or may prefer other investments. In fact, if they sell only part of their holdings, then they clearly want the rest of their shares to appreciate further. For these reasons their sales do not necessarily suggest a negative evaluation of the stock.

Short sellers, on the other hand, clearly expect and seek to profit from a decline in the stock price. Their motivations and expectations are different. When short sellers are active, other investors must expect that these short sellers hold a highly negative evaluation of the stock and may drive the price down through further short selling. Short selling, furthermore, has the added significance of expanding the market's total holdings of the stock, which may require a price decline merely to induce new investors to absorb the new shares.

For this reason, investors should have accurate and timely information about all significant distributions of new shares that arise because of heavy short-selling volume. In the absence of this information, investors are presently unable to distinguish between heavy sales by current stockholders and the introduction of new book entry shares into the market through short selling. As a result, they may inappropriately infer that existing stockholders who are reducing their holdings are responsible for an observation of heavy trading volume and a price decline when in fact these are due to a supply expansion caused by short selling.

The present reporting of short interest statistics by the exchanges and the NASD does not supply the necessary information to the market and is entirely inadequate for this purpose. Aggregated short interest data are reported monthly to the exchanges and the NASD by brokers and dealers and are disseminated through the public media several days later, so the net short sales from one monthly reporting date to the next, net of purchases to cover previous short sales, are eventually known. No other data on short selling in individual stocks is available to the market, however. Market participants cannot know, therefore, except on a delayed basis several weeks later, about changes in the supply of an issuer's shares through short selling.

These organizations should develop a method for collecting daily short-selling activity and weekly short interest data from brokers and dealers. They should then make this information available electronically to the market in aggregate form.

B. THE UPTICK RULE AS AN INSTRUMENT FOR IMPROVED INFORMATION

An uptick rule for short sales represents an indirect method for addressing this information gap. Moreover, as explained below, it acts as a stabilizing constraint on trading, allowing more time for the dissemination of information, when heavy short-selling pressure may otherwise be disruptive to pricing.

The present uptick rule (SEC Rule 10a-1), which is applicable to trading on the exchanges, should therefore be retained. Moreover, the SEC should expand the uptick rule so that, with appropriate modifications, it also applies to trading of over-the-counter stocks in the NASDAQ system of the NASD. NASDAQ trading should be subject to the same protections as trading of exchange-listed issues, for the protection of investors.

Under an uptick rule, all sales that set a lower price must be long sales, because short sales at such a lower price are prohibited. This immediately gives market participants information about who is selling when the price is falling, since only current stockholders are permitted to sell at a lower price. This is information that is not available without an uptick rule.

An uptick rule also prevents the price of an equity from falling continually solely through short sales. Long sales must take place to establish each new lower price. This has a stabilizing effect when there is substantial short-selling pressure.

This stabilizing effect provides additional time for the dissemination of market information in connection with the offering of new shares by short sellers. By slowing down the distribution of new shares when there is substantial short-selling pressure, it provides more time for financial analysts, the press, and the company itself to circulate information about the company and about the additional shares being placed on the market by short sellers.

Allowing adequate time for the dissemination of information may be particularly important for small over-the-counter companies because the stock prices of such companies tend to be more vulnerable to disturbances caused by rumors and misinformation. One reason is that press coverage of these companies is often sporadic, with news releases issued by the companies themselves often being unreported in the media. In addition, fewer securities analysts or professional funds managers typically cover such companies, so there is a smaller established base of familiarity with such companies in the investment community.

Many people have questioned the effectiveness of the present uptick rule on the exchanges and, by implication at least, question whether any purpose would be served by implementing a similar rule for NASDAQ trading. This view appears to be based on a belief that short sales, whatever transitory price effects they may have, do not materially alter the long-run pricing of the issues sold short.

This position ignores the supply expansion resulting from short sales, or else it assumes that the supply expansion has no material price effect because the demand elasticity for all issues sold short is practically infinite. This is not a reasonable position for most stock issues, especially small issues.

Moreover, the supposedly transitory price effects of short sales can have important and lasting consequences for both investors and issuers and cannot be ignored. For example, short sales that drive down a company's stock price can disrupt a planned public offering of shares to raise new equity capital. Likewise, investors who purchase shares on margin are vulnerable to having their shares liquidated to meet margin calls if short sales drive down the price substantially for even a day. The uptick rule, by reducing issuers' and investors' vulnerability to such problems from transitory price movements, clearly is effective in stabilizing the market for exchange-listed stocks for the benefit of issuers and investors.

For this reason, the uptick rule should immediately be extended to trading in NASDAQ issues also.

...

.

C. DISCLOSURE OF MATERIAL INDIVIDUAL SHORT POSITIONS

Investors who acquire 5 percent or more of the shares of a company must report this fact to the SEC within 10 days, and the SEC filing is made public. However, short sellers who acquire a short position of this magnitude in a company's stock are not subject to any similar reporting requirement. Regardless of how targe an investor's short position in the stock of an individual company, he or she may remain entirely anonymous.

The subcommittee has received very strong expressions of support from company executives and interested stockholders for the concept of a public reporting requirement for large individual short positions, analogous to the present reporting requirement for investors who acquire 5 percent of a company's shares. Moreover, no substantial opposition to this concept has been expressed to the subcommittee. In the subcommittee's hearings, the witnesses for the American Stock Exchange and the SEC expressed reservations about whether disclosure of major individual short positions might have unintended effects on the market and might represent an unwarranted disclosure of proprietary trading strategies, but these concerns were not expressed in a manner to reflect a position of opposition to the concept.

Moreover, as described above in Section III, the committee believes that the psychological atmosphere among investors and issuers regarding stocks targeted by short sellers exhibits a disturbing and unhealthy pattern that may seriously interfere with fair markets and efficient pricing, and the committee believes that the complete anonymity with which major short sellers are now permitted to operate contributes importantly to this unhealthy market psychology.

The committee therefore finds that such a public reporting requirement for large individual short positions is needed, for two closely related reasons. First, the committee believes that stockholders and issuers whose portfolio investments and business activities are under direct attack through the large-scale activities of sophisticated multi-million dollar short-selling partnerships have a right to know who the individual short sellers are in cases where their respective short investments are large enough to be material in relation to the total outstanding shares of the company; and second, the committee believes that the equity market will function more fairly and more efficiently if this information is available publicly.

The committee therefore recommends legislative enactment of such a reporting requirement. Although this reporting requirement might also be accomplished through SEC rulemaking, the SEC has recently stated in its concept release seeking public comment on the suggestion of such a reporting requirement that the agency's authority to implement such a rule for purposes of market information is not clear.¹⁶ The committee therefore believes that legislation is the appropriate method for implementing this disclosure requirement.

¹⁴ SRC concept release on "Public Disclosure of Material Short Security Positions" (Federal Register, June 13, 1991, pp. 27260-85).

A. THE BASIC PROBLEM

As explained above, short selling expands investors' total beneficial holdings of a stock issue so that, in the aggregate, investors own beneficially more shares of that stock than the company has issued. In particular, investors whose shares are held for them in brokerage accounts by brokers and dealers own more shares of a stock that has been sold short than the brokers and dealers, as a group, hold for them as the record owners.

As a consequence, it is not possible for all beneficial owners of such a stock to exercise a proxy vote in full proportion to their beneficial ownership. Proxy votes can only be given for the shares actually issued by the issuing company and held in record ownership by the registered shareholders. When this number of issued shares is less than the number of shares owned beneficially by investors, as a result of short selling, it is not possible for all shareholders to have a proxy vote for all their shares.

Investors who hold shares in companies where such an expansion of beneficial ownership has occurred are not informed, however, of this potential constraint on their proxy voting. All customers of brokers and dealers generally receive proxy materials for the full amount of the shares in their accounts regardless of whether their broker or dealer will be able to honor and act on all proxy instructions received. The natural assumption of investors whose shares are held for their account by a broker or dealer, therefore, is that their proxy voting instructions will always be acted upon just as if they had record ownership of the same number of shares.

Moreover, there are no rules governing how brokers and dealers should handle a situation where their customers submit proxy voting instructions for more shares than they can act on. This situation is essentially unregulated and is left, consequently, to the discretion of the affected brokers and dealers. This situation is therefore very vulnerable to a form of proxy failure, to deception of customers, and to other abuses and distortions of the proxy voting process, as explained below.

The distribution of proxy materials to their customers by brokers and dealers and the giving of proxies by brokers and dealers on behalf of their customers are currently regulated by the New York Stock Exchange. The proxy rules of the New York Stock Exchange do not adequately address the circumstances that are created by short selling, however.

The proper remedy for these problems lies in rulemaking by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The SEC possesses broad authority under Section 14(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to regulate the giving of proxies by brokers, dealers, and other parties on behalf of their customers for shares owned beneficially by these customers. The SEC has not, however, issued any regulations under this authority concerning the giving of proxies.

The committee's specific recommendations for the regulation of proxy voting in issues sold short are stated in Subsection E. below.

B. PROXY FAILURE UNDER THE NYSE PROXY RULES

The New York Stock Exchange's proxy rules are of primary significance for governing how most brokerage firms handle proxies for their customers at present. The NYSE proxy rules apply to all aspects of proxy handling by all New York Stock Exchange member firms, a class that includes most of the brokerage industry. The NYSE rules apply to proxy solicitations for all companies, regardless of whether the company stock is listed for trading on the Exchange. In particular, this means that the NYSE proxy rules govern member firms' handling of proxies for companies listed on NASDAQ or the American Stock Exchange, as well as New York Stock Exchange listed companies.

1. Rule 451 ("Transmission of Proxy Material")

The NYSE's Rule 451 requires every member firm, upon receipt of the appropriate proxy materials and an assurance of reimbursement for expenses, to "transmit to each beneficial owner of stock which is in its possession or control the material furnished." The rule is silent regarding the beneficial owners of stock that the member firm is carrying for the account of customers but which the member firm does not have in its possession or control.

If a member firm has lent out all customer margin shares of a particular stock, then the firm will not have possession or control of the shares of any customer whose sole holdings of this stock are margin shares. All shares in the firm's possession or control will be cash or excess margin shares belonging to other customers. Rule 451 thus leaves open the possibility that, under certain plausible circumstances where stock has been lent out to short sellers, some margin customers of a broker or dealer may not receive proxy materials. The rule clearly does not require the distribution of proxy materials to such customers.

The NYSE has reported to the subcommittee, in response to a question about a situation in which a firm does not have in its possession or control shares purchased by cash customers, that "member organizations are required to provide every beneficial owner long on the stock record of the organization an annual report and proxy materials pursuant to Exchange rules."¹⁷ Thus, in spite of the absence of any specific language to this effect in Rule 451, the NYSE is apparently interpreting its rule to require the furnishing of proxy materials to all beneficial owners, regardless of whether the member firm has the customers' shares in its possession or control.

2. Rule 452 ("Giving Proxies by Member Organization")

The Exchange's Rule 452, which deals with the giving of proxies by member firms for shares in customer accounts, is also silent cegarding proxies for shares not registered in the name of the firm or its nominee, which would normally include shares that have been lent to short sellers for delivery to other investors or their brokers. The firm is only required under Rule 452 to give proxies "for stock

¹⁷ NYSE letter of February 19, 1991, p. 2.

registered in its name, or in the name of its nominee, at the direction of the beneficial owner."18

In cases where the firm owns as record owner fewer shares on a proxy record date than the number of shares its customers own beneficially, and where the customers collectively return proxy instructions for more shares than the firm owns of record, the customers' proxy instructions cannot all be followed in full proportion to their beneficial ownership. Rule 452 is silent on how to interpret the meaning of the phrase "at the direction of the beneficial owner" in such circumstances, and the Exchange has not issued any instructions or guidelines to member firms on how to handle such a situation.¹⁹

The Exchange has, however, described with apparent approval what it calls "a practice" for handling such situations:

Were an allocation to be undertaken, we understand it is a practice to give each fully paid and excess margin customer his or her vote as it is received. Remaining votes are then allocated ' ' ' among the margin customers whose shares are not within the firm's possession or control, i.e., loaned out.20

This practice, while having an appearance of being equitable, appears to be in conflict with Rule 452. In the circumstance described previously, for example, where a member firm has lent out all customer margin shares of a particular stock and does not have record ownership of the shares of any customer whose sole holdings of this stock are margin shares, then all shares owned of record by the firm will be cash or excess margin shares belonging to other customers. If the firm distributes proxy materials to and receives voting instructions from such margin customers whose shares it does not presently hold, and if it gives proxies configured according to these instructions in accord with the practice described above, it will be acting in apparent violation of Rule 452. The violation arises because, by assumption in this example, these customers whose instructions are being acted upon are not the beneficial owners of the shares for which the firm, as record owner, is able to give proxies.

The occurrence of a violation in such a case does not necessarily imply that the practice described above is improper. It may imply only that Rule 452 is not formulated adequately to deal with such situations.

The inadequacy of Rule 452 is further illustrated by the fact that it is fully consistent with the Exchange's proxy rules and other applicable rules for a member firm to lend out all the customer shares of a particular stock issue (assuming all the customer shares were margin shares available for lending under the SEC's Rule 15c3-3), to solicit the proxy voting instructions of these customers, and then to disregard entirely the proxy voting instructions re-

¹⁴ Under certain circumstances detailed in the rule, having distributed proxy materials to the beneficial owner in compliance with Rule 451 and having received no instructions by a certain dote, it may give proxics for such absres without instructions. ¹⁹ See the response to question 4 in the Exchange's letter of February 19, 1991, p. 4 -²⁰ NYSE letter of April 24, 1991, p. 4.

ceived from the beneficial owners. The New York Stock Exchange confirms this interpretation in its letter of April 24.21

3. Failure to receive shares from clearing

Present practice in clearing and settlement leads to substantial and persistent delivery delays in certain equity issues, so that member firms do not necessarily have possession or control or record ownership of their customers' securities even when they do : not engage in securities lending or hypothecation. This phenomenon is amply demonstrated by tabulations, prepared by this subcommittee from data supplied by the National Securities Clearing Corp. (NSCC), showing substantial and persistent receive fails (i.e., clearing longs) in many NASDAQ issues in December 1990. When such receive fails are outstanding on a proxy record date, then even cash customers may be deprived of their proxy voting rights if enough of the cash customers submit proxy instructions to a firm that has not reduced its shares receivable to possession or control.

This buildup of substantial fails-to-receive in customer shares is apparently encouraged by the SEC. The NASD has reported that the SEC interprets Rule 15c3-3 in such a way that it is permissible for a member firm never to reduce to possession or control shares purchased for cash by cash customers, if the customer shares are receivable from (and guaranteed by) the National Securities Clearing Corporation.²² Paragraph (d) of Rule 15c3-3 requires that a broker must take steps to obtain cash and excess margin shares that are more than 30 days overdue, but apparently the SEC has determined not to enforce this requirement with regard to shares receivable from NSCC.

4. Lack of equivalence between cash shares with broker-dealer and shares owned of record

As a result of this SEC policy, holding fully paid equity shares in a cash account with a broker or dealer is not equivalent, for purposes of proxy voting and corporate governance rights, to holding shares registered in one's own name as the owner of record. A beneficial shareholder who is also the owner of record of his or her shares has corporate governance rights, including rights to vote by proxy, that are specified under State law and each issuer's bylaws. A beneficial shareholder whose fully paid shares are carried for his or her account by a broker or dealer does not enjoy the same rights unconditionally, since the firm with which the account is held may not have record ownership of the shares even 30 or 60 or 90 days after their purchase.

Moreover, the broad discretion that brokers and dealers have to allocate votes as they wish when customers return proxy voting instructions for more shares than the firms hold of record²³ permits

²¹ See part (a) of the "Pollowup on Question 1" in the subcommittee's letter of Murch 7, 1991, and the response in the Exchange's letter of April 24, 1991, pp. 1-2.
³² The NASD's 1986 report on "Short-Sale Regulation of NASDAQ Securities" (the Pollack Report) states in footnots 105 (page 5)) that, under Rule 1563-9, the SEC treats securities due from the Clearing Corporation for customerrelated transactions as the equivalent of a fail-to-deliver less than 30 days, regardless of age. See subcommittee hearings. p. 320.
²³ See the description below in subsection 6 ("Broker discretion...")

them to curtail the votes of cash customers, if they wish to do so, even when their record ownership exceeds their customers' holdings of cash account shares.

The conditional or uncertain nature of the proxy voting process for such cash investors, as a result of the SEC's policy on shares receivable from NSCC and as a result of the broad discretion enjoyed by brokers and dealers to allocate votes arbitrarily, thus introduces a distinction between direct record ownership and beneficial cash ownership in a brokerage account that may be important to some shareholders.

5. Fair disclosure and customer deception

12

An important question of fair disclosure and possible deception by member firms arises from these circumstances. When a member firm distributes proxy materials to all customers shown in its stock record as beneficial owners of a particular stock, as the Exchange apparently expects the firm to do under Rule 451, then the firm is implicitly notifying them that their proxy instructions will be submitted to the issuer just as if the beneficial owners were record owners. The firm knows at the time the proxy materials are distributed what its own record ownership of shares was on the proxy record date, and thus it knows whether a sufficiently large return of proxy instructions would exceed its record ownership of shares. By failing to notify its customers of the possibility in such a case that their proxy instructions cannot all be acted upon, the firm is misleading its customers. It is implying to its customers that they have a right to have valid proxies, configured according to their instructions, given to the issuer when there is no such right, only a "best efforts" probability. This failure to notify customers of the conditional or uncertain nature of the proxy process can be construed as customer deception.

Broker discretion in the giving of proxies on contested and material matters

The NYSE's Rule 452 provides that a member firm must follow the voting instructions of the beneficial owners of stock, and may not vote shares in the absence of such specific instructions, when there is a contest as to the action to be taken at the company meeting or when the action to be taken includes authorization for a merger, consolidation, or other matter that may substantially affect the rights or privileges of the stock. However, as indicated above, there is no guidance in the rule itself or from the Exchange in any other form as to how a member firm is to handle a situation where it receives proxy voting instructions for more shares than it holds in record ownership. Moreover, the Exchange appears to approve of an allocation practice that, under certain circumstances, may result in the giving of proxies in violation of the rule.

Thus a member firm apparently enjoys substantial flexibility when it cannot act on all the instructions received, and in particular it presumably may select at its own discretion which voting instructions it will disregard, even if there is a contest or a proposal for a merger, consolidation, or change in the rights or privileges of the stock. If we suppose, for example, that a firm has received customer instructions for 10,000 more shares than it holds as record owner, then the firm presumably may select for discard all voting instructions, up to a maximum of 10,000, that it finds objectionable. It might specifically select for discard those customer instructions (up to 10,000) that oppose the management's proposals, or it might specifically select for discard those customer instructions (up to 10,000) that are not compatible with the preferences of a particular favored customer. This opportunity for discretionary selection of which customer instructions to implement in such cases is clearly incompatible with the principle underlying Rule 452, but the Exchange has not seen fit to apply this underlying principle to the particular circumstance of "overvoting."

C. EMPIRICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND MONITORING

1. Empirical significance—the NYSE's information

This foregoing analysis of the possible abridgement of proxy voting rights is not a mere hypothetical exercise. Although it characterized such situations as rare, the New York Stock Exchange acknowledged in its letter of April 24, 1991, that instances where customers' properly submitted proxy voting instructions could not be acted upon because of insufficient shares in the firm's record ownership have actually occurred.²⁴

In its subsequent letter of June 4, 1991, the subcommittee then requested further information from the Exchange about specific cases where this has occurred, in order to illustrate the situations acknowledged generally in the Exchange's previous letter. The Exchange has not provided this information but has not rejected the factual premise underlying the subcommittee's request. The Exchange merely responded by letter on June 14 that this information is not in their possession and is not information that the Exchange would obtain in the normal course of business.

This response casts doubt on the reliability of the Exchange's characterization of these occurrences as rare, because the Exchange is essentially stating that they do not have firsthand knowledge regarding the frequency of these occurrences.

2. A plausible scenario

In fact, it is quite plausible that, contrary to the Exchange's characterization, such proxy voting failures may occur with some regularity. The most plausible scenario would involve the equities of smaller companies that are not widely held but in which there is a substantial short interest on the record date for proxy voting.

If a particular stock is not widely held in the investment community generally, then a small brokerage firm could easily have just one or a very few customers who hold this stock in their accounts. If just one customer with a large and active account owns a major position in this particular stock on margin, if the firm has lent out most or all of the customer margin stock of this issue prior to the proxy record date, and if the firm's other customers hold very little or none of this stock, then these circumstances make the situation

 $^{^{24}}$ The Exchange's letter of April 24, 1991, states "... the situation where a customer loses has or her proxy vote seldom occurs.... In the rare instance that such a situation occurs, discussions with member organizations indicate (p. 3)

very vulnerable to a proxy voting failure. If this one active customer should decide to return proxy voting instructions, the firm will clearly be unable to honor these instructions.

The Exchange and the SEC staff have both asserted that, on average, brokerage customers return only a small portion of the proxy voting instructions provided to them for company annual meetings, and the committee has no basis for questioning this general characterization. The scenario of proxy failure suggested above is entirely compatible with this general statement, however, for it only requires one active margin customer with one small firm who decides to return proxy voting instructions.

The Exchange has also asserted that a firm that has lent out margin shares of an issue can recall the securities loans if needed to secure voting rights to honor customers' instructions.²⁵ Additional votes can only be secured in this manner if the loans are recalled before the proxy record date, which is before the firm knows how many customers will return voting instructions. Moreover, there is absolutely no incentive for firms to recall loans for this reason, there is no penalty whatever for not having sufficient shares to honor customer voting instructions, and recalling the shares is costly. The loans are a source of income that would be cut off if they are recalled, and recalling stock loans may also generate ill will with the borrowing brokers, thereby impairing the firm's opportunity to derive stock loan income in the future. Thus, member firms have no incentive to recall loans purely to provide proxy votes for margin customers.

For these reasons, the scenario of scattered but regularly occurring incidents of proxy voting failure is entirely plausible, notwithstanding the low average general frequency of customer voting and notwithstanding the theoretical opportunity for firms to recall securities loans before the proxy record date.

3. The absence of complaints

In its February 19 letter the Exchange cited the absence of customer, issuer, or member organization complaints as a reason for concluding that there have not actually been any instances where beneficial owners could not exercise their voting rights.²⁵ The Exchange's later acknowledgment of occasional instances of voting denial, notwithstanding the absence of complaints, demonstrates that the absence of complaints per se does not prove that there are no problems, but it may still be construed by the Exchange as an indication that whatever denials of voting rights have occurred are not of importance to investors or issuers.

Any such conclusion from the absence of complaints would not be justified. On the contrary, the absence of shareholder or issuer complaints that was cited by the Exchange might well not have any significance whatever. Brokerage customers do not have any way to learn that their voting instructions have not been executed according to their wishes, and so they have no basis upon which to make a complaint. Similarly, issuers also have no way of knowing

^{**} NYSE letter of April 24, 1991, p. 2.

^{24 &}quot;... in reality this has not accurred, judging from an absence of customer, issuer or member organization complaints." (NYSE lefter of February 19, 1991, p. 3.)
of any such curtailment of proxy voting rights. If voting instructions are disregarded, only the brokerage firm or the proxy solicitation agent retained by the brokerage firm will know in the first instance what has happened.

As for member organization complaints, there is no motivation for a member organization to make a complaint about such a situation. Hence the absence of member complaints also has no significance.

4. Adequacy of the Exchange's compliance monitoring

The Exchange's admitted lack of firsthand knowledge about the frequency of actual cases where customers' properly submitted proxy voting instructions could not be acted upon because of insufficient shares in the firm's record ownership also raises a question about whether the Exchange is adequately monitoring member firms' compliance with Rule 452. This rule requires that member firms must have, and must maintain for 3 years, records showing all voting instructions received from customers and "a summary of all proxies voted by the member organization clearly setting forth total shares voted for or against or not voted for each proposal." Member firms thus must keep for 3 years records showing any discrepancies between the voting instructions received from customers and the proxies actually voted, and Exchange review of these records would have to occur if the Exchange is to monitor the firms for compliance with Rule 452. If the Exchange does not learn in the normal course of business about the instances where customer instructions could not be acted on, then this strongly suggests that the Exchange's examiners are not effectively monitoring the firms for compliance with Rule 452.

D. FROXY VOTING BY SHORT SELLERS

1. Proxy voting in excess of investors' net beneficial ownership

Under the present New York Stock Exchange proxy rules and distribution practices, proxy instructions will be solicited from investors who have no net beneficial ownership in the company involved if the investors have long equity positions offset by equal or greater short positions. Moreover, proxy instructions received from such investors will be acted upon by the broker as the holder of record to the extent of the broker's record ownership on the proxy record date. The NYSE rules take no note of offsetting short positions in customers' accounts in determining the eligibility of customers to receive proxy materials and to have their instructions acted upon.

It is common practice under appropriate circumstances for investors to hold offsetting long and short investment positions in a particular equity security. Long investors with an unrealized gain in a position may short "against the box" to lock in their profit while postponing realization of the profit for tax purposes. Short investors with an unrealized gain (due to a price decline) may "box" the short position by purchasing an equivalent long position, thereby locking in their profit and securing release of their margin, while postponing realization of the gain for tax purposes. Investors having such offsetting positions, and thus having no net investment position in the company's securities, are still treated under the NYSE's proxy rules as beneficial owners, as if there were no offsetting short positions in their accounts.

This opportunity under the NYSE proxy rules to control proxy votes without a net investment position may contribute to a reduction or denial of proxy voting to other beneficial owners. If the customers of a firm collectively return proxy instructions for more shares than the firm owns of record, such that the firm cannot act on all the proxy instructions received, then any partial fulfillment of the proxy instructions of investors having no net investment position will reduce, share for share, the ability of the firm to act on the instructions of other beneficial owners.

2. Proxy manipulation through short sales

This opportunity under the NYSE rules for an investor to control proxy votes without a net investment position also creates an opportunity for serious manipulation of the proxy process through proxy capture short selling. An investor wishing to gain control of a certain block of proxy votes would simultaneously purchase and sell short a suitable number of shares just before the proxy record date. The purchase would entitle this investor to receive proxy material and give voting instructions, while the offsetting short position would eliminate all financial risk from the transaction.

If the offsetting positions are purchased simultaneously, then there would be no net buying or selling pressure registered in the market, and the market price of the security would not be affected. If, in addition, the offsetting positions are purchased through the same broker or dealer, then presumably a small commission could be negotiated for the combined transactions. Moreover, unwinding the positions after the proxy record date had passed would only require the broker or dealer to offset the two positions on his books and records without further trading. Finally, the margin requirements for the trades would be minimized by having both positions in the same account.

If the firm through which the purchase trade is made already has record ownership of at least as many shares of the same stock for other customers, then the voting apathy of these other customers may enable the firm to give full effect to the voting instructions of the manipulator without obtaining record ownership of any more shares. Similarly, the firm handling the short sale (which may be the same firm) will generally not need to borrow shares for delivery, even assuming the firm has complied on the trade date with the requirement to ascertain the availability of shares for borrowing.

As a result of these factors, the transaction costs associated with a proxy manipulation of this nature may be quite low.

E. RECOMMENDATIONS

Section 14(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 sets out the SEC's relevant authority as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any member of a national securities exchange, or any broker or dealer registered under this title, or any bank, association, or other entity that ex ercises fiduciary powers, in contravention of such rules and regulations as the Commission may prescribe as necessary or appropriate in the public interest or for the protection of investors, to give, or to refrain from giving a proxy,
 consent, authorization, or information statement in respect
 of any security, registered pursuant to section 12 of this

title, or any security issued by an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and carried for the account of a customer.

The SEC has not issued any regulations concerning the giving of proxies under this section of the 1934 Act. Moreover, according to the New York Stock Exchange, the SEC does not have a specific policy regarding shareholders' voting rights.²⁷

The SEC should therefore promptly establish a policy concerning the proxy voting rights of the customers of securities brokers and dealers when short selling has expanded the beneficial ownership of individual stocks, and should then utilize its broad authority under Section 14(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to implement this policy.

. The committee recommends further that the following specific elements should be included in any such SEC rule:

:1: Require full disclosure to beneficial owners.

- 2

Full and accurate disclosure should be provided by brokers and dealers to their customers both about any potential limits to their proxy voting rights and about actual curtailments of their proxy voting rights.

i. Brokers and dealers should be required to provide to all customers whose equity securities are carried in accounts with the firms full advance disclosure of all potential limitations on the customers' ability to exercise a proxy vote effectively, as a result of leaving their shares on deposit with the broker or dealer. This notice should be given at such time as each customer opens a margin account or any account other than a cash account for the carrying of equities long.

ii. Customers should also be specifically informed, after the fact, whenever any portion of their properly submitted proxy voting instructions cannot be acted upon and passed through to the company because the broker or dealer does not have record ownership of sufficient shares to act on all customer proxy instructions.

2. Limit proxy rights to NET beneficial ownership

Each broker or dealer should be prohibited from soliciting proxy voting instructions from or giving proxies at the direction of beneficial owners for more shares than the net amount owned beneficially by each beneficial owner, as shown on the books and records of the broker or dealer, after subtracting the short security positions of each beneficial owner. Customers having no net beneficial ownership in an equity security on the books and records of the broker or dealer, in that their short positions in that security equal or

²⁷ NYSE letter of April 24, 1991, p. 3.

exceed their long positions, should not be entitled to receive proxy materials or give proxy instructions.

3. Assure full proxy rights for cash account securities –

÷ .

The proxy voting rights associated with equity securities in customers' cash accounts should be fully protected, when not offset by short positions in the same securities with the same broker or dealer, so that these rights are identical regardless of whether the beneficial owners take direct record ownership of their shares or leave their shares on deposit with a broker or dealer. In order to implement this principle:

i. Record ownership: Brokers and dealers should be required at all times to promptly secure and to maintain record ownership of the number of shares of each equity security that their customers own beneficially in cash accounts. The only exception to this requirement should be for shares concerning which the beneficial owner has executed a written agreement permitting the lending of the shares and conforming to the requirements of Section (b)(3) of Rule 15c3-3. No exception should be provided for shares receivable from a clearing organization.

ii. Priority in proxy voting: The proxy instructions of the beneficial owners of securities held in cash accounts should always, without exception, receive first priority in the giving of proxies by a broker or dealer and should be acted upon in full, to the extent of each customer's net beneficial ownership, before the broker or dealer acts on the instructions associated with any other shares. In addition, a broker or dealer should always act in full on the instructions of a cash account beneficial owner even if those instructions are received late, such that the broker or dealer is required to execute new proxies in place of previously executed proxies.

iii. Protection for cash account status: Brokers and dealers should be prohibited from transferring customer security positions from customer cash accounts into any other status in order to evade the requirements set up for protecting the proxy voting rights associated with cash account shares. In addition, brokers and dealers should be required to execute within a specified brief time, such as 10 business days, all legitimate customer requests for the transfer of excess margin shares to a cash account. In addition, brokers and dealers should be required to place in a cash account all shares deposited by a customer or received for the account of a customer, unless these shares have already been sold or have been specifically designated by the customer for deposit to another type of account.

4. Set Uniform Procedure for Allocating Remaining Votes

Brokers and dealers should be required to allocate according to a uniform procedure, established by SEC regulation, all proxy votes that remain after giving full effect to the proxy voting instructions of the beneficial owners of cash account shares not offset by short positions. This principle must be observed so that the broker or dealer does not exercise discretion over which instructions to submit and which to disregard. Under this uniform procedure, all shares carried for the account of customers by a broker or dealer that are not held in a cash account should receive proxy voting rights in the same proportion to each customer's net beneficial ownership of shares with this broker or dealer, up to the limit of the votes available. This procedure would not distinguish between excess margin shares and margin shares for purposes of determining proxy voting rights.

5. Require reporting of proxy failures

Brokers and dealers should be required to report to the SEC, as they occur, all instances where they are unable to act fully on one or more customers' properly returned proxy voting instructions. This reporting should include separate information on the instructions received and the actions taken regarding (a) securities beneficially owned by customers in cash accounts and (b) all other securities beneficially owned by customers.

6. Provide for recordkeeping and other procedures to verify compliance

Brokers and dealers should be required to keep records of the proxy voting instructions received from customers and of the proxies voted by the firm in order to permit verification of their compliance with the proxy requirements. .

APPENDIX

.

÷

-

· ... · · .

.

.

STOCKS WITH HIGH SHORT INTEREST, 1986-90

.

Alphabetical Lincing

	Alphabertical L	ALL ING				
				Pares	there daties	
Campany	£14y	State -	MARKED C	there	to 150	deta
ite with the barrow and.	lanian			474,179	.964	Jan, 90
	Bonton Unco Ling Plakma Jort Lee Dyster Bay Ashland Hoursein View Surtyvala Arithgion Selighté Koryoka	13	44.00	410, SEZ	.075	Jan. 69
1 [BISANCE 1 4 BAADE HC	traine	- 24		1,941,562 589,558	- 146	Ray, 90 Sep. 90
ALL LAND DUA	Jort Lee	ii ii	842040 8739 842040 842040 842040	365,106	.064	340, W
ACCLAIN ENTERTAI MENT	Dyster Bay	NÝ.	84.0040	1,024 751	.053	0er, 90
ACCINESTICAL RESERVICES ACCINES STRETCHES SINC	Ashiend Movemente view	11		4,264,464	. 121	Aug. 87
ADVINCED PISHO DEVISE	1000Aula	či –	TT SA	1, 124, 167	.066	Jul, #7
ADMARCED SYSTEMS Sec.	Ariington Beighte	IL.	1754 1754 1415940 1415940	er7,525	.120	Per, 17
AMANAA CORF. Afsatijaring manic corf.	Korshan Kolycha	74 Nij	ALCONG .	1,165,609	-126	Nar, 99 Dec, 89
THE REPORTED	Applecon	- Fi		420,696	. 05.2	A.1, 10
ALASCA MUTUAL BANCOUP Augan Aluhining Upp.	Anchor see	AL .	8540 112	210,010	. 064	041, 07
ALCO BEALTA BERNICES CORP.	Malyoku Appletan Ancharage Rantamui, Guybec Velley forge Geotle	MA NA	11.044	10,256,027	. 077	Mag. 90
ALDUE COMP	feetip	Let.	845940	139,005		6av. 90
ALLEGARNY OFVERAGE			MIST M	546,246	124	Nn, 17
ALLEGRAN GENERAGE Allegren Britsbuttenal Allegren Frankliger Allegren Br	Sen Olego	2		1,041,196	Z	646, 86 Aug. 89
	Powerson	71 51 Ti		2, 309, 039	.077	Bor, 28
ALTIS LAIN, FSB ANDURA CORF.	Hobile Permar	AL .	1000	356,975 025,575	.073	Jan, 90 Mar, 90
haddelet CatildanaCatas	EGreenville	NG :		43,655,600	214	Hay 97
ANNULISA VEST ACE	Tempe	42	80 <u>50</u> 60	1,910,342	. 125	Aug. 57
ANGRICA VEST ALE ANGRICAN CITE ANALISES ACANALS ANGRICAN ANALYSING SALAS	CherCotte	Τη ΑL DD : 44 Η ΕΓ ΕΓ ΕΓ	BASD40	551,IS5 1,035,000	- 136 Eqt.	Rer, 18 Rev, 47
ANERGICAN ENVIRES BASE (81)	white Plaims		NY SE	1,010,050	367	1 , 90
AND FIRST AND ISS.	کنو اک	24	4044	1,632,545	. 167	4cr, 49
MAES DIFF STORES NAMER	Pocky a LL Phone and Gabe			2,695,752	.066 ,060	Aug. 90
NESSEA4 BAR SAARS	Renzheater		140.40	944, 595	.060	Feb. 90
ANNAJOZNI, CHC.	Laters and	9	1000	3475,985	.061	AGE . 47
ANNE MC Annesinges Indanesia	Treing Topoto	TA ES	11 54	1,648,500	. 117	rato, 140 Jul, 48
ANACONT, JUC. MINACONT FUCKSTUDIES	Indianago lis	1	1151 1151 1151 1151 1151 1151 1151 115	762,190	470	Dec, 47
Maradan (MOUSINIE)	Endlenagetis Los Angeles	E4	THE .	368.849	- 056	0ec, 38
ARIANA CORP.	A Longoin	59 54	A DE AD	2,554,130	-059	Dec, 60 Kar, 97
NEORE DOMERICATIONS	Perner Alaanda Calgary, Altaria	Canada	EAG NO	737,507	. 977	0.1. PO
1212204 13101201 101100 0007.			8152	272,675 656,900	-118	A
ANTH ELECTIONICS	Reiville		112 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172	800,242	.070	Jul, 65 Rar, 65
Aetea GROP Inc.	Sorthfield	п	8152	104,137	.221	Feb. 90
JIA 190	Plasmules New Verb	MY	N-55	462,359	.017	Mar, 87 Aun, 87
Janica - MATE	for range	LA .	NA STAR	1,340,057	.055	F #0. 17
ASTIN TETEDATIONAL INC.	Tempe		NAME AN	291,000	.075	Apr. 94
ASSOCIATED HARMAN CAS	Derver Sen Frencisco	60		616,555 2,156,610	130	021, 66 An, 60
ATT REDECAL	Las Veges		132 132 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 14	637,696	.164	Hey. 15
ATTENTIC FIRMACIAL PROFILE	Las Veges Bala Cynwyd ⁴ Seuselico Sauselico	ML	10.0040	249, 192	.059	140, 19
AJIONER, INC. AJIONATO LANGAGE PROCESSING	SALINITO			1,449,957	.001 .035	600, 80 1400, 80
AVENT SERVICEAL COLP.	SHE Lake City Persian	Ċ.	- 1475E	2,401,845	.054	Leg. 90
ANGET, INC. ANG DARP.	- New Tork			610, 473	.094	ect, P
A L O C PEVELOMEN' DOMA.	new York Ceres Sables	R.P.	885040	1,259,547	.0.0	Jan, 10 Jun, 10
And Add 1 lat.	part i pp	μ π μ	10000	349, 55Z	074	146, PO
NACE INTERACTORIA, COMP. Na Fort, Naciating	Meet Grange Meet Pork	<u>.</u>	MY RE	299,075	.065	Ner 27 Aun, 66
BALLY MG. DOM.	thic of	is.		8,309,631		ior, 90
BALTINOSE MARCINE	LaCtione .	HO	배명사 비명사 비명사 비원사 비원 비원	1,242,409		Aun. 90
NAME OF BOSICS NAME OF BEV ENGLAND COMP.	Boston Gösten		3374	9,166,844 7,812,551	. 114	1479, 99 146, 110
EARCHOLDELTER CORP.	Mohtan, ter	N.	840040	1.017.105	1 77	Oct. 90
DAMER INCUSTOIES, CL. L	Cleveland	CH	4112	1,074,975	.241	Aug. 90
LADRETT BANCE INC. NARELS ENCUTTO IES	Jacksonville Lós Argeles			3,459,397 746,366	-059	Nor, 90 All, 60
BARTON INCUSTRIES INC	Dunca-		and the second	405, 591	.014	Jun, 90
BAYBARS, INC.	606100	14	4490.00	3,570,056	.245	140. 99
MELLARC DON'. MENES LAD INC	f salipat Laite vacanti	R.	A SE	265,122 792,735	-075	0CT, 68 Nav. 67
KAT BAT CD.	l loorington	ñ.	TH	1,115,620		De1 07
	•					

(37)

Alphabetical Listing

	étytuket is et i	Listing				
				Kao Inge	. Bacima	
Company	City	flate	markes.	Sheres Short	thors have a	Cete:
rochards						
alo szolout tet.	Eden Preinse		14.07.40	474,041	.0.76	Aug. 80
310 ÁÍSÁGÁL, ÍRC. 310-tichnigart gennal comp.	stermend Bee York	ÇA Wî	TAENED MARNED	555,490		Dec, 47 Nar, 48
SIGNAFT LANS	E imrood Park		THE	1.900.434	LDT	4cv, 40
A IGNET AND	Vernan		141240	1,432,368	.052	- Aul. 10
a conscience of DEVELOPMENT CODE.	sector.	-	TATIVAS	262,396	.0%0	De1, 17
SINGHAR STELL CD. Suade & Digner (2014).	n i restañsan Fomilian	4	1758 1778	612,217 6,190,118	.060	Hay, 50 Dec, 50
ALOGORISTER ENTENANCET	FT, Louderdale	ñ	175	6 201 444	241	Dec. TU
SOMEOROOM BUT INT IS PRODUCTS	Long Beach	DA .	TARDAR	442,638	-066	Sep, 20
SOLLE PEARMACTURICAL	Copiegue	Er.	19	3,011,002 \$51,477	. 145	Max, 177
SOUTON FINE BARCERP SOSTON REDGIOLOGY ING	Bostón Centr Idae	1	LANDAD LAND	1,42,163	.074	6.0, 90 Mai, 90
Annual Companies, 1nd	Park kide	JL.	LATING	242,344	.052	Aug. 10
SPECCE & STRATTON CORP.	Vie. and 146-5	91 - C	1111	1,122,335	.075	Jan, 170
\$54 GONP.	Dellas	12	ATE TATEAD	420,400	.092	M.Q. 47
Hurfell, INC. Houman szávicé Cutt.	Eden Preirfe Columbus	14 I	6.546	250, 434	-056	Mere, 89 Nov, 87
ALULA LLO SINS INC.	F1. Lauderdelle	R	14000	1,121,368	.055	Qe1, 🚧
OURFLAT TERMENTAL TAXED	Rev arhibin	ET.	147740	34.7 400 1,527,732	- 102	OCT 90
40114258490, 10C.	San Jalé Sigié College	CA Na	111R 14040	116,315	-042	AP. 47
C COA ÉLÉCTRÉMICT C J T INDUSTRIATS, CL. A	New York		34 (2)40	202,506	.140	3.0, 17 3.0, 40
C D C INTL INC.	\$1-mford	6T	10152	202,506 7,110,390	157	3 n. 29
CARLOVISION 1111041 CORF.	Voodbury	PT	ASE	1,561,766	-179	Dec. 70
CANOT HEPICAL CORP.	West Langhorne	м са.	TA SEAR AA SEAR	374, 666		A.4, 90
CADNETTE COMP CALVER INC.	Bévidar Los Angelins		37.54	3,741,792	140	14.00 TO
CALIFORNIA ENERGY CO.	San francisco	ČA .	ASE	1,505,160	_071	549. FO
CAUDET I DUTAICS	Chicago	al.	14120-00	156,540	.060	Jan, PO
CARDEIDE BIDIÇA COMP. Cardela Linge Comp.	Word Bater Weyland		1450M0 8150M0	5,072,350 200,940	. 104	Jul, 89 Det, 83
CARLEN CARLE / UNC	Law Torz	HT	THE STREET	1,265,457		Aul. M
CAP ITCL BANCORNERATEON	Lensing	RL	BASDING.	472,452	. 174	Aut, M May, M
CARDINAL OLEVELOUTON	South Bublins		MASSING.	663,620	. 112	May, 59
CARL PLUS, INC. Careerson comp.	ft. Laugerdale La Moyna	M .	in SC	1,561,227	. 134	Jan, 67 Jan, 69
CAPERCON CAPER	hightend City	M . R	M3044	614,928		Jan. 90
CARGINE CHELMAS, EL. N	Coli unibusi	6		370_370	. 106	Dec, 67
CARESUSTON LINE INC.	Set ins	T	1010	27, 70	, 136	JUL, MO
CANTER NAME AND CANTERET BARCOPP	ion ingelen Marcisson	KA NJ	MT보 MT보	\$,280,233 674,976	.657	0 ec. 60 Jul 10
CASEN'S GREENAL STORES	Anitality	ja –	10.00	1,366,041	. 115	AL. 19
скриц нице, то	Shr wantan'y	-	100200	200,003	.053	ADF, 19
CARALINA LEGITENC	Armst .	12	652 6762	405,52:	. 122	Cet, 07
CATALYET (MINIGE COMP. CATALYET EXEMPTION DEVELOPMENT COMP.	Manu Tort Tana Tort	81 HT	#15W	3,283,400	.075	нин, 18 Гар, 11
CELLULAR COMPLETEATIONS INC.	New York		R+ 50-44	5,767,268	.053	Hary, 🗰
CLINCAR INC.	Erel evoid	₽	84 ST 80	452,459	. 10	Jun, 90
CALENTER .	Set entrony	¢r ¢A		1,023,308	.964	Adr. 90 May: 90
CLIFTER TELENUNAZENEN? Clifteal namenes staten	Lan Francisco National Creek	5		1.595,668 369,640		14p, F
CETTAL FIDELIST BANKS	t chaond	ya -	NA SURG	915,603	.054	DL.E., 10
CENTRAL SPAINKLES COMP.	L gerapela 1 m	PA .	NA 90.40	210,548	.0.10	Jul, 🏙
CLIMENT CONF. CNAMPICM FLENS INC.	denses City Cet Brook	ND 11		363,091 248,276	.090	104. 17 Dec 87
CHIMINE AND FAALPEL AND.	fatelet		10000	349 241	.095	May, 87
ENARMER CHE FINANCIAL, INC.	Cleveland	D m	NA ED AU	349 241 407 571	.070	Apr. 50
DARE MOTOR COOP	Pisiseh	#1	사보	344 834 442 331	. 134	10.17
DRUUIE MECHANICALIES	Hetairie	LA 107	NA STURA Na Marine	11,21,71	.066	Jan 190
CAEMICAL ALANTING COMP. Caemical Aligne Met	Tanu tork Cali tanah	n.	TH	1,550,443		Nat, 90 Sep, 10
DETERSE SOFTIMATE, INC.	tos inn		K12	677.644	, 194	1 68 , 170
COLD YORLD INC.	Aven	M.	1000	633,146	.473	AN, 170
CHILS'E HHC. Dhitighaden Comp.	ûnê i bû Juri îngton	בד זיא	87 SE 14 SE 44	659,626 253,647	.055	May, 90 Sep, 90
DATADAR CORF. DADES FULL OF MUTH	Tex lock		at 12	1,426,698	. 162	فتور يتبيد
CHECK FORE	LearnerCeville	M.J	10.00.00	1,037,734		440, 44 867, 49
CINE MEX CHECK	loranto, OMLLAÍo	Canada	T H	6,479,478	.274	NO7. 17
cilitad d	Phogenia. Nichmond	A2 VA	m K	5,010,050	. 415 .054	345, 39 145, 10
CINCUIS CIÚT STOÙÉN CINCUS LOGIC INC.	al traine	CA .	A 60.40	21,242	.962	Dec. 40
CI DOD BYSTEMS INC.	Rento Perk			761,468	.062	Oct, 170
CTILIZEDE FERST BANCORP (Nu)	Çişen Back	41	14	1,621,000	.476	Hay 90

•

.

.

.

Alphabetical clinking

				Rec lange	Kapa Kanya	
4	61cy		Чегкет	Perm	Plant tellio	···· ·
Company	EP(Y	41459				Carle
CITERED FIRMING CARD,	Begin instan		B4.50.80	1,922,241	.074	
CLATTER REALS INC.	Georville	T	#7 S\$	1,655,800	. 102	Hec. 90
CLEAN MARICH'S DUC. CONCIMENT LADASTREET F	Guiney Elibert	M	HARDAG HIT	1,242,469	. 158	Les, 10 Dec, 47
CENSI MAYING FINANCIAL			1112	1,665,700	10	Acr. 10
CODA DEDECT FAC.	Dati jes	та .		925,493	. 200	Mar. 10
COLECT INDUSTRIES	West Nortford	ET	1111	2,157,000	121	Jul 💭
ça,çalar ətan indahə Dələy ətşəşər tiçanda datı	ênetan Marini êkî Jay	**	191	1,512,709	- 676	Reat BT
COLOROGS COMP.	Borground		THE OWNER	1, 561, 101	, 115	041,65 Jul,90
COLUMBIA FIRST BASK, FOR	Artimaton	MAL 2		277, 157		AM. W
CONCINCIAL CREDIT CROOP	Bal Classes	MD	4TSE	217,157 2,139,919	.021	
CONCRETE ANY IST & LOAD (TL)	langelan Fi. Linderdele.	dan - Nu	242040	750, 576	_071 _096	604 , 61 Dec., 67
CONTRACTS SAVINGS (BOUTCH)	Reaton	n i		1.042.000	102	Dec. 47 Oct. 47
CONTRACT NATL BANCORP	States latend	M7	EASTAR .	207,732	. 15	Dec. 97
CONLINETY PETCHANNIC CLATERS	Lagera HHLIE	64 Th	THE .	2,754,141	- 25-9	Dec. 90
CONVERSION CONVERSION	Balaton San Jose	12		3,285,937	- 136	Aul Mi Dec 00
CONVERSION CON.	Selfer 1		TSE	1.409.071	.012	Feb. 42
CONNECTION DECIMAL OF THE	woodsary	- T	84.2040	4,447,590 265,731	.054	feb, 89
CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT COMP.	Classifier 1	.	14:00-00	265,731	.463	Lev, 16
COMPARAT BROCHERCH	loranio, Onterio Ian Jose	Canada	ALC: NO DECISION OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER	1,943,605	.075	Oct, 97 Nav, 99
COMERCIA INC.	Circuit	1	1112	628,997	119	Mart. 87
CONSCI. IGATED FOR IGNITURYS	Rento Part .	6A	112	5,01T, 197	.117	aton, 94
CONSTRUCTION NAMED	C11 petertin	1		00.019	-054	Feb (01)
CONTINUETAL AIP MOLDINGS. Continuevial information numbers	Rougton Synacise	П W	6.57 10122	1,420,105	100	Nev 20 Jun, 87
contraction, medical defines lat.	Syr Island Nachani Catalog			996,725	.071	bac. 90
CONTINUE CO., INC.	Avetio	12	4.52	454,000	-104	M
COOPER CORPANIES	New Torth		112	5.545,300	. 24.0	A4, #
COOPER DEVISIONERT CO. COPTIELE INC.	Norsein Vier Matington Station	8	n tem N tem	329,377	102	Ang. 20 Cet. 57
CONTRACT FILL	Pel (edel phile		100000	192,700	.054	Feb, 40
CONSUMPTION AND A SCIENCES, ENC.	Revealant March	5A	1.57	777,622	.054	-Det, 90
CORRECTIONS CODY. OF AMERICA	Manaley III.a	IN	84.50AO	T25,950	-961	10 - 10
CONTRO WWOLESALE CO. 2006 THTV204 CHEDIT IND.	E ir bilandi Peresiana	en de	10.50A0 17.55	2,243,545	.092	Pery, 87 Sep, 87
CHERTHERIN FROMMAL SAVINGS	Edison	11 11	1111044	053,650 840,350	119	Leg. 10
CROEDLAND SAVINGS ISD	Brooking	NT.	NT LE	1,291,452	.007	041, 10
CAC I STEMATIONAL INC	1tenford	CT .	NTRE	2,544,736	-112	· • • •
CTIOCEN CONF. D U A STSTORE NAC.	Princeton Reikoutter	1		897,999	.075	Cet, PC Aut, M
D S BANCOR ISC.	Derlay	çi -	NJ EDAG	750,766	370	Qer, 90
CLUST ATATONS COMP.	BOUNDER VIEW	<i>c</i> a	NAED AG	2,547,496	. 164	Bir, 47
DARSON DIL	Hen Tork	n	4	748,054	.000	Roy Ad
GARTHOUTH BARCOF INC. DATA SHITCH CORF.	Nookeen t Shel tan	4 1		977,883 1,447,365	126	NAM, 190 Jam, 199
	Capacitation	2		114 MA	. au	Dec. M
DATAMAS INC.	Francesele	Á2	140040	1,004,525	225	Jan, 10
Dalascore comp.	Hanzwele	N2 .	NA DO.AS	1,004,525 544,577 779,562	. 50 .	Aug. #
Diger Colley. Ng Symo Cing,	Ben Tofk Des Flaires		ASE Frat	279,582 579,411	.053	an, 10
DEL LEN CONT.	Moenis	44	17.65	\$24, 9 00		10, 20 10, 20
DELL CONFUTER CORP.	America	D.	NAME AND	1,104,515	044	
DESIGNE, INC.	Changement affect	Ma.		20,023	.044	Jun, 47
DEVEN ENERT	Obtainin tity Albumaraya			1,030,013	-041	4un, 40 May, 40
DEGITAL PICTOMANE.	Sen Jose	a	44 10 14	2,504,451	216	4an, 90
DEGETAL OPERATOR COMP.	licent of		BARDAO .	1.1.2.20	.062	446.47
DIGITECH INC	Marytand Heights	.		768,768	.054	449, \$2 649, 90
DENE SAVENES BANK DESENSE OFFECTION	Dim Lofi. Litving	in .	176E 448040	2,400,340	- 196 - 057	640.90 Apr. 87
DOLADA GENERAL DONA,	Redwille	1	BATE AD	1,245,665	.066	feb, 66
DOUBLE HELIK FILMS INC	Gen Tork	M7	ALC: NO.	763, 197	210	A.B. 40
NECO EMIZEN ADIVICES LIV.	Editorian, Alberta	Canada	KA BMO	10,713	_Dep	Dec. 99
CHERTER FROMMER, CONT. CONT	Bountain Piece Sebiard		LA EDAG	722,764	-100	Feb. 87 Aul. 90
DELYERS GRAND I DE Delle Deporten I de.	Calumbus	ġ.	1401.00	242,623	-064	A. 1. 10
MANUTO PROPERTY ICAL SEC.	Circintett	CH .	MASSAD	163,749	.054	Der. ##
NUM-FELLING MEDICAL, INC.	Hard gallet y	AL	BARDAD	1,107,673	-144	Nar, 19
GUNY FAIE INTL INC.	elderfeld	G.	845040 8752	406,113 686,950	120	Aug. 94
STORE FIRST FREE	West Palm Beach	м,	1122	000,750	, 100	Aug. 87

Alphabetical Linting

Company EASTLAND. FEMARIAL CORP. EDD COMP. EQD COMP. EVOIDS. INC. EVOIDS. INC. EVOIDS. INC. EVOIDS. INC. EVOIDS. ENDON, SHC. EMISONE INC. ENDIFIC INC. FOLSEAS INC. ENT SHOUTELES INC. ENTER COULSES COMP. ENTER BARCONF INC. ENTER BARCONF INC. FALL THE ENTERPOINT FALL THE FOLLOW FOUND FALL FOLLOW F ÷ . . AUGLI POLLOG BYDELT FASTERA CO. FERGINE COMP. (FME) FERGINE COMP. (FME) FERGINE COMP. (FME) FERGINE COMP. OF AUTOLA FERGINE COMP. OF AUTOLA FERGINE COMP. (FME) FERTI DECOTIVE COMP. FERTI DECOTIVE COMP. FERTI DECOTIVE COMP. FERTI DECOTIVE SIMMCFAL SIMVICE FIRST DECOTIVE SIMMCFAL COMP. ALIGNT INTERNATIONAL DECIM-FOOTIAL DECUP, GL, A FOOTIAL DECUP, GL, A FOOTIAL DECUP, GL, A FOOTIAL COMP. FOUTIAL COMP. FOUTIAL COMP. FOUTIAL AND A COMPANY AND A FOUTIAL A PROVING DEFINITION PROVIDED FOR THE PROVIDED FOR THE PROVIDED FOR THE PROVIDENT FOR THE PROVIDENT FOR THE PROVIDE FOR THE PROV CUBALITE FILLICUL CORP. GUISTO HOF. GO-YICO, HOF. GO-YICO, HOF. GOLAGY BALLER HICKNAWL FOODS, HEC. GULAGY BALLER HICKNAWL FOODS, HEC. GETAT HUMPICAN COMPANIESIONS. CHEAT HUMPICAN GALEMENT RENAL GROUP GALEMAN GROUP

.

Alphabeticei Li	Fatire				
CIty	11414	Parkes	Rezieur Phenes Bhore	Next Matte Short Matte 14 150	bece
Mount others		140340	\$32,512	- 05.	046, W
College Point Issesses		3155 345240	410 513	.070	100, 100 100, 100
Phoenia	12	24,1040	509.201	.092	140, 87
Sermote	n.	10.00 AD	280 450 647 504	. 054	Ber. 64
Bahary Bostan	Ľ.	11,574.0	647,500 419,209	. 197	ort, 66 Nov, 89
Trop	¥1	NATO AS	130,473	. 055	feb, 64
HOLE TOP Boul Top	TE .	- A124 A124	4,764,003	104	Am, 40 Rey, 87
Stanford	E1	K K K K K	1,203,591 306,108 743,491	. 654	Ray, 87 Jan, 90 Aug, 87
Non Tori South Plainfield		- ALT	743, 491	.068	Aug. 87
Beaverton	ä i	ASE	694, 116 578, 304	.057 .	Aug. 90 Mov. 90
Atlante	ĠØ.	112	4.202.165	.099	De 90
Las Argeles Pensecals	са. ғі		755 659	.045	May , 89 Sep. 89
Bullety .	MA	BASONG .	755,639 452,926	.074	140.10
let.et		KT TE	1,004,511	. 147	0ec. 10
Tulas Artent	ė.	474E 45E	409 434 594 691	.062	Mary, 45 Dec. 40
Charlotte	EC.	arid	594,691 1,674,448	.054	340, J
Wincow Program k	NGC NJ			.081	Feb, 170
Clevel Connecce	C 1	Ka30wû	3, 407, 47 655, 893 2, 210, 742	.961	140, 59 Det, 80
1 evine	GA	ar #E	2,210,742	.062	Dec. Sr
tanta Perbara Porth White Piairs	СА. 107	ar út Metrad	342.004	.060	16 met
Sents Ine	CJ	NA STAR	1,226,745 471,001	134	
Los Angeles	Ű,	MARK .		. 126	DC1, 6V
inglewood Jun Cin	CA 13		10,072,247 176,144 135,829 404,770 1,703,430	. 119	тю, 10 РК, 17
Wooster	04	IN SOLD	115,629	. 156	Ber. \$7
Listle Moch	M	A 30.40	404,770	. 110	Apr., 17
Atlanta Poraville			1,103,430	.005	540, 90 Dit, 44
Jh1 ade ch5e	Pa	WY SIT	3,274,029	.066	140, 47
Les Veges Replaced		- 10.000		. 198	***, **
Ster Tork		ET EL	317,360	-076	May, 20 Dec, 20
Providence	₽1.		1,154,545 317,360 7,244,371	.04.7	An 30
Amport Reve Los Angeles	14 64	LARNAG IT R.		.176	941, 69 64, 69 541, 69
Bev Tork	• **	155	463,046	-064	D-12, 10
Derwer	8	LA POAG	520,426	.110	811, 90 804, 90 804, 90
Clearneter RL. Bolly	FL.	Trading	408,250	_D94 _081	804, 90 804, 80
RI. Bolly	K .(3ATOMO	120,005	-061	4pr, 90
New Orleans Cincinnect		4116 ASE	5,160,932 601,825	.058	- 1,90
Children			6,504,148	-156	60v, 60 Cear, 90
Lagra Elguri	4	140040	910.360	.199	k.n. 🕫
Providence Nirvespolie	41		1, 175, 973 755, 603 1, 537, 665	-122	QC1 87
Yaranner, S.C.	Canada	192	1, 137, 045	-001	Auc. 64
Versioner, S.C. Grand Repide		117740	700.444	.053	снк, ФО
Set Frencieco	5	8115E 8155	5 559 491	. 070	407 B7
Nor (historia	FL	1157.60	600,257 120,535	. 045	3av. 90
H1ggal	FL.	NTRE	120,935	, 169	Apr 90
Castridge Ser Reley	M.	84412 AA A 32	299,525	054	ALIE, 90 340, 85
Harleyville	SC	1152	539,625 1,402,205	.166	Ect.
ReverLy Hills Glandsia	<u>,</u>	47第 125	1,402,200	.005	Mar. 87 Dec. 90
Scottede le	64 A2	452	5,004,602 975,799	. 708	844, 90 2017, 88
Rinnings-Lin ·		MP ST	1,757,100	. 15.5	2017, 80 Nev, 90
Buffelo Ben Diego		1792 1762	2,369,776	.064	Mary, PO
Ginc Inness	61. 67	BAS0 40	2,663,629	.065	Apr. 90 146, 91
Re.h.f der	M J		2,683,629	.451	s., a
St. Paul Meston	ка Ф	1735 1765	2.015.340	. 102	Jul, 90 May, 90
Farmingdals	Ĩ.	6.52	385,436	.064	Aug. da
-			-		

. . . .

_ .

Liphabertical Listing

	Eighabertical L	let free				
				Sere:	Regimen Short Ratio	
Collemy	ČI EV	FIRTH	Market		Te Ted	Date
GREATER INC.	fort Sanhington Carbory	с С		3,414,453	- 160 , 109	0e1, 85 A.0, 67
CHOLODWATER TREAMALOCT, INC.	borwood		11.244	58,641	-961	Feb. 90
CARDA, CARDINA	New York	•	n±.	1, 175, 752	102	A
GRUELE, INC. Guidd Iam Blanktor	Yerice	a		44,743	-126	Ner. 07
GARANE CHERRY CARDENFAL SYS.	tos Angeles Avastan	ά.	A4E	40,657	-134	804, 90 941, 97
R.B. 1.7. 10C.	104(0)	nk .	1.3540	421,440	.114	Ker, 67
WAW BEDLOGICS, INC.	al and a	CA	1150AP _	527,170	.080	Juni Di
NAIDER ENVIRONETTAL NAETLIGT MELTE	- Borganvilla		NT SE	320,450		
NARČELIČI I INLIČE Hell fo anazes joč	- Oriendo Aciense	FL CA	N13540	400,818	.943	247, 00 Ani 10
MULTICANE CONTACT CONT.	- Déminera Grove	τι.	EASO40	244,810	.951	ian, 89
MEAL PROAME TELEVICIES CHOLP	Bund Ingdon Vel Cerr	#6 ·	115040	1,197,283	. 234	621, 94
NEAL FREEDULK RENAMED, FTATION	Şirmingtanı .	÷	的复数	1,230,740 654,100	127	Aug. 50 May. \$7
NECETE JOC. Nelijs of 1827 comp.	Altra Es Temo	14		741,701	222	Mar
NONCONE CONT.	Sharton Oaks	6Å	BASD44	150,158	451	Rig, AT
NEWDOTEANECE ENG.	Noce Meton	۴۴	10040	247,005 575,554	.0000	JUL, 10
NÉBITARÉ ÉARCORF, INC. Niche,Luc Glavésicéez, Inc.	Holycke Plymouth	M4.	110040	\$75,554	.979	Apr. 90 Jul. 87
NICHELLES COPENSIONES, INC. NITUCH ENGINEERING	- RéLinah	W	10.540	, 532, 520 864, 605	.405	Pec. 87
HOLLY SAME DON'S	Respiris	r II		1,339,690	.980	Qct, 87
WHE BEPOT INC.	Atlanta	44	1752	7,174,157	. 663	Here, 10
NORT GRACES BEFERENCE LAIN HORT GALLING SAVINGS MAIN FSM	Lanexa Boston	68 M.	NATE	1,307,450	.007	
HING CARDING SERVICES BALL FOR	Cleanater	51	1752	0,237,031	.671	Mar, 80 Mar, 80
STAR & MARARI .	Law Weges	P N	442	1,620,033	102	Lun, 89
REPARTING THE CONTINUES.	Prospect Heights	j.	Nº 4E	3, 21, 29	.044	1.0v, 90
NUSSIAN BOOKDICAL NUSSIAN INCLUSTERING	ine Boostende Boueton	TE TE	아랍석 다보	290,160	.054	Hay, 50 Aug. 47
NAMES TAVING BUT AN	Kennet			1,124, 55		For, 10
WHEE SEC.	wate on	NH .	124	1,113,779	. 360	úcct, 90
AD\$99 Maas, a. A	Acgers	AR .	W RE	626,636	. 53	Lep., 10
ELATE COMP. ICH BIOMEDICALE	Rimaintary Çeştş Henn		inte Kal	712,991	.054	oct. P
FOR PRIMACOUTICALE	Conta Mese	čA.		3, 395, 676	105	1
161 I 1 42.	Vinetand	H 4	Mag	1, 562, 511		ant, 89
SNU.487 (11)	Seattle	let.	- 10 50.40	1,010,523	207	ke, 90
CHREG INC., CL. A Lufommafica Pescurces, inc.	Hen Officiale Difeogo	ы. Ц		1,398,817	.291	Dec. 80 540, 80
tufotela cort.	Henlo Park	- a		TD6 3.54		Jan. 90
CHELFE MANDERS INC., CL. A	 Kahavittie 	RC .	A \$0.40	567, 455 F34, 501	. 165	F
CHEMERCA, INC.	Norr Inton	P1 67	6150A0 6766	P34, 501	. 070 101	140.40
ENERILATION REPORTES ENERILATION CONTRACTOR	New York Actance	ä		6,650,766		449, 40 Hey, 47
CHILGRAPHO RESOLUCES	Hen Tort	ñ	TH	2,632,226		ыL 19.
turgi, comp.	Şente Clare	C4	EA COMO	10, 131, 796	_955	Apr, 40
TATELLIGAL INC.	Cancelliten	TT PL	87 (4) (4) (5) (4)	761,422	- 118 ·	100, 10 Mar, 20
CHTELLIGENT ELECTRONICS CHTEBOD JMC.	Esten St. Louis	мо.	FTH	3,424,974	192	H. F
CATERRACE JAC., CL. 1	LaGrange .	či i	EASTAG	1,141,397	, CE L	140, 90
FATERLEAR INC.	Mart Cham	KIL.		1,022,000	.009	Get. 20
THTENHAL INC.	La Joite			507,500	.022 .246	104, 17
נורנטאור כספי. נורנטאוזטאאן קרנאנכאן נאו	Exercit Maatry Lie	ын ТП		2,204,170 731,580		Νον, 70 Οιτ. 67
LEFERMATIONAL CARE TECHNOLOGY	tens	HT .	· 14,00.00	1, 105, 474		Aug. 🗱
LETTERATIONAL LEASE FILMERS	- beverly all to	CA .	EA 2040	Z. 366, 590	.047	Jun, 70
INTERNATIONAL DICEOCOMPUTER SOUTH	Can defeel	ça.	EASTAG	12,577,344	_107	Jul. 67
FATERNATSONAL PARESALS & CHEMICALE I FERMATSONAL PODISE NACHINES	. Her rithrook. Ling of Prussia	NA NA		1,243,131	.173	Add de Dat de
IFIEDATIONAL ACCIEFCEL CONP.	fl See.ndo		1112	1, 327, 100	, 110	Dec. 90
I ETZ BEAT FORM. TELECHINE	,Gallani	13	142	1,527,100	104	HCM. 12
FETCHARTSONAL TOTAL (24100 FTSTOR	Car I shad	1	54 CARD	416,326		Jun, 90
INTERVOLDE INC. ,	Galleo Andres	T.		474,807 208,343	-175	Jul, 90 Boy, 61
I PACSTREAT A TRANSIC GETS AND .	tdieon			1,465,173	.072	A.n. 164
INCSTORE FINANCIES CORP.	Fictured .	WA .		464,648	.070	HF, 19
ISEL CORT.	Difcepe	14	12	3,544,016	- 189 - 189	avi, 17
1 L 3 BACK FOCH ALCON 2010/03/05	Fernesiden Lui Tejes		4752	407,000	100	Bev, 54 Dat, 59
THE MELT WHEN LING	Santiès		APE	2, 142, 226		4a - 90
JEFFY LUBE INTERNATIONAL INC.	Mounton	י נד	Sector Sector	3,254,481	. 220	Mar. 17
ADWER THISTOGRAPHE DU. A	Englewood	φ		\$97,195	_122	Jul, 90

.

. .

-

Alphabetical Litering

		-		Text age	Paul aux	
College	City	B LoTe	merkes	Sherred Mort	Chert Betto	Dete
Contraction of the second s				MORT 1		
E Y PEABACEUTICAL, CL. B	11, Laule	F Q	4頁	3 64 , 151	-077	Jun, 28
ELPPA METADIES	A MARKANY		46E	27,77	-142	3.0, 2 6
KAFLER COMP. KAY ARARLERS, Jac.	sun Bernardino Alexandria	CA VA	1420440	2,012,435	-116	1444, 50 146, 90
EZANI INC.	Real on	NL.		212,409	.073	Bar, 20
DITISTICHE HIDTCH, CORF.	Columbia	ND	112010	20,00		Jpr, 65
KINDING ERVEROMENTAL SERVICE	Faces Timeral car	N, 100	ITSE	1,155,477	-125	Mar 90 641 80
Kikistaanek Miberal Conf. Ingua (Doevaat juc.	A CANCEL	<u>.</u>	1.5040 1.5040	401,679	-171	601, 60 X64, 99
MODER PROPERTIES	Jacksonville	ā.	1 SE	1,44,917	.061	Oct. 99
L 4 (1544) 145. L 7 K (2047).	Los Angeles	CA	17 51	4,487,509	. 194	Sec. 95
L T K COMP. UK Milteri Aslater	Nextword Karess City	MA.	1457 40	620, 160	.052	0 xc, 69 Aug, N
LANSON & SELECTIONS	Clevelare		1756	929,567 1,162,703	. 101	No. 55
LUNDALK GRAPHICS COP.	NeurITOP	T.	84.50 M	774,412	093	Jun, 90
LANDRAHY LAND CO.	Cardina -	<u>64</u>	A52	1,077,750	. 127	Rey, 90
CARS+ CAR, 14C. CARS+ INCC+TREES 210.	Chicago Tel Aviv	նկ Մարտատանկ	921. Maže	1,200,001	-060 -063	0440, 500 JUC, 533
LISTENDOF, INC.	San Jone		RASONO	502,273 552,992		107, 00
LCCATERS INC.	Beccison	b	RA3040	710,513		Q.e.c., 90
LEE PURPORTIONIS	South fl Maria	<u>64</u> '	ALL	469,797	. 114	Oct. #F
LEJEARE CONCEPTI, THE. LETERNI TECHNELORY	New York Los Angeles	а С.	1746	429,017	.051	ы. # м., М
LZO'S INDUSTRIES	Long Setting	2		547,900	.000	- P1
LENIE CALCOM TONE	San Franchaco	C4	17 SE	76,94	.680	Dec, 69
LIFELLE MAATHGARE CHORE	Broken Arrow		E45040	160,010	.952	aug. 20
LINCOLF SANCOFF	Engline Lindhey	ц.	143040 148040	307, 180 260, 764	. 120	Jul, 17 500, 97
LIDEL COP.	Fire Torit	.	1.52	1,311,202	- 0996	Sec. 29
LOADHASTCE STOTENS	Europ.ch	12	LASCAR	326, 462	-055	Rey. 37
LOGIC SEVIERS INC.	Survey on La	2	A COLOR	211.215	.062	Oct, 90
LCHIANA-YELEPICS Liy COMP.	Dukwer City Deline	TA	1455 W152	3 011 654	.085	Hay, 46 Hay, 67
L7PHCHED, 38C.	Ecwolid C	iî	KA30.44	4,324,644	. 144	- 1
H P COMPUTER SATING	Marry Colle	CA .		1,552,771	-076	Del, 90
NAACHERT COMPANY ENTERTAINERY Annuratilised Robers	key fork	57 16	MAGDUM ADE	016,350	.055	30, 30 Nor, 89
AANDAGTURED ROMES Romunacturet Ramover	Winasov-Belen Jaw York	F	ARE STILL	266,350 2,643,612	.053	Apr. 49 An, 60
WAYHLE DONT.	Derwar	œ	17.0	3,091,750	.120	Óc-1. 55
MALK COMPANY, & COMP.	Skak fe	16	MARDED	140,544	.053	Feb. 41
NANG (Y INDUSTII):: Nangjoit comp.	Allaites Bathéidé	∎î' ≂0	위험 파벨	1,559,650	.095	AA, 90
NATED LANET CONTACT TO . EDITIONS	Net Name	- 2		479,005	.050	Nev. 90 Jun, 40
HATRER HEDICA / PILLAL MEDICAL	West Blage	60	Replan	1,121,221	.050	Jan, 67
MANJAG (COMP.	Rev14h	76	1125	5,157,930	. 051	100, BP
-COEAMONT I - FEAMANIONAL	New Cristman	1	8352 8452-40	4,037,019	. 105 - 065	Rat, 95 Jan, 87
adis acontté, cat. Jugalist lacusters	eeverk Filusisee	÷,	14 12 44	236, 230	.057	Aug. 07
SEDCREW PRODUCTE INC.	Volutin	NÅ.	ASE	279,539	. 060	OC5, 87
EDDD RETEARCH, TWO.	Los Angeles	CA.	external second	1,183,182	. 224	QLL, 90
REGISSER SROPPL INTL REGISSER INC.	Sq. Louip Mialeon	100 A	652 652	270,410	.204	Bov, 80 Sep. 80
HEASTONE INTERNATIONAL	Enclos		EAST-	787,660	10	Tor, 87
WELEVER, INC.	Aurors	a de la de l	885040	1,014,472	. 144	Bow, 87
REATER COMP. (THE)	Same Berbera	<u>64</u>	10.504.0	1,331,749	. 122	Mar, 30
NEWLER STAINES STOL	Philadelphis	рл ТТ	NA1040	4,682,983 Pos,560	. 139	1ep. 59
REFIN ASELIATE, IAC. RICKAL FOODS, INC.	Delles/TH Asrport Minyeego- ke	10		1, 20,040	.000	Ann, 10 Ann, 10
BICKOCCH INC.	Romatod	MA.	44.10.40	732,994	.002	Jun, 90
HICHOGRAFF JWC.	Electronic and the second s	TR.	NASO NO	473.679	.091	PK. 90
HIC ON FEENINGLOCY, ENC.	Noi 14 Tha bar mailt	10 ·		2,347,289	.072	Nar, 20 Nor, 20
NJCLOPÓLIS CÓRP. NJCLANTEC CÓRP.	Chatevorth Editori	1		3,447,961	.0741	5 0 10
MIDWAT AIRLINES, INC.	C* 1 C # 00	II.	1155	1,494,215	. 163	14p, 10
PID-EST COMUNICATION CORP.	High Land Balighta	<u>E</u>		628, IPL	.210	Jul, 47
n instant lact.	Longacht Ningagachte	60 R		2,349,270	.024	Feb. 69 Rey, 60
NELECALE BROSTIERS, JHC.	Lan Clago	2	450.60	175 413	057	N.O. 60
ROMPASA HOMER	Butte	ŃТ	MARE .	1.044.475	-040-	Sec. 07
BUCTIEARS FOUNDERS	Dechall	M.	40.904.0	579,969	.074	90
RTOLER CORF. RTTLAN LLUS	Şan Diego Pişçebarg		an sa	551,610	.000 .136	A. 87
	Ben London	3	44.70.40	473.243	-050	Boy, 69
A F & FEMALCIAL DONP.	kmbul	in in	40.55.46	268,044	.097	140, ØS

Beel ----

Alphaberlica's Livicing

Alphaberica' Listing						
				Restaur Storm	Hasings Short Betta	
Company	\$1cy	Бтате	Rentes	Port	TO INC	Dec+
RUTLONAL BALLMERT STITLERS INC.	Rissiesage, Onterfo	r	RADAS	1,350,3 58	.461	
BATIONAL COMMITTY BATES	Reywood		NASE AN	615,703	.071	нь, 66 юм, 90
MATTOMAL DATA COMP.	Atlants.	GL T	112044	1,001,546		May 90
MATIONAL DATACOMMUTES	Billerica In factor	M		11,000,200	. 173	AN, 17
NATIONAL EGUCATION CORP. Nutional clawbith Color, (INE)	irvína Grannaich	<u>a</u> '	1746 1840 Au	1,640,403	.472	6-ec. 67 6-ep. 65
NATIONAL MEDICAL ENTERMISES	Santa Ronica	<u>.</u>	8752	4,704,718		Qcc, 89
REGAU, INC. METAGRE GLALAAL COMP.	Laurencevitte	H.e	Na State	4,702,718	.005	649), B?
BEINGRE BLADAN COPP.	mento Park	<u>e</u>	NATIONAL PROPERTY OF	1,143,679	.063	54p, 90
METHERE SACANTIY CORM. Mey angle, naga anglant tuno	bellan Boston	fic Ha	entário Frai	1,501,600	.004 .055	Aut. 87 Nov. 49
NEW ENGLAND CONTINUES CARE	viest bor ough	ŵ ·	LARD LA	1,185,587	195	· •
NUMBER OF STREET	Lonate, Oncario	Canada	AND NO.	2,001,103	.062	Apr. 90
MENDORS & LEWIS MENDORS PRANTACION CALMINISTIC	Ricksville		ATE Manua	610,900 1,952,736	.065	. Hep., 66
	Legare Hills - Montrale			2,300,003	.091	Apr. 90 Aug. 57
MODELE STAR ANDVENSAL	Al magnitin	RT .	CASO NO	760,751	.085	40°, 90
STAL STATE SAVINGS . F.A.	Har Hord	Ç.	er SE	1,138,097	.217	Ref. 47
MENACAL2	Vatley Forge Provo	АД 01	44 50 40 44 50 40	810 075	.054	Q.c. 40
NEMTLL, INC. Ny Mesa Indriganjes Ing.	treis-ood	50	1400	1,401,269	.685	km, #1
MACON P. INC.	Chicago	ii.	BASD NO.	220,695	,074	Apr. 39
MAR EDS. HEC.	R. Irona apport M.		1.51	2,114,754	147	Dec, 90
47532 HEC. 6 M COMP.	f vegac k		A STAD A ST	472.239	-041	-Jul, 68
G'ARTEN ERRAGY SYSTEMS, CL. A	- and York philadelphia	er M	14	2,403,594 584,414	_611 _619	aun, 69 Tab, 59
COSPUTIÓNAL-VARIAT CUER BLALIN	. Encremento	CA .	24,50,40	1,901,533		Bov, 95
açırını bayısını dari tası	Ripitas	ÇA İ	ea chao	1,575,202		Apr. 70
0/FICE 0890E 1MC, 0L0 \$10/E COPP,	Goca Teson Freeidence	PC Ri	149040	1,001,374 548,460	_067	Oct, 90
cential solutions	Tott Link	NI 81.0	TTR.	542,487	-054	Aug. 90 Sec. 37
CAR BLEZER (THE)	For i i and	HE .	DASIMO	727,072		Har, 90
CHE MILCE CLOTHING STORES	1per tentore	14	H12010	+34,325	.066	061, 89
GPTLCOMP CREARCOLDESIS	Petersburg Castrídor	114 1944	4457.40 452	370,246	_077 _160	Nov. 54 Ney, 67
CHICH CAPITAL CONF.	New Tor2	.		1,148,400	.070	5-m, 67
CENEDEN BLEDEN CL'T	Gehkosh	¥I.	11,0040	713,993	.056	061, 90
CALIF L NI - T	Glen Allen	116	NYSE.	435,769	.076	Ad, 17
P O E LART INC. Pace péniékspit tátemats	Echierikana Aurora	en Con	RATEAD	1,023,674	- 634	Aug. 95 Ney, 67
PACINEC CAS & BLICHNIC	San Francisco	č.	1154	34.641,050	.097	.tn 61.
PACIFIC WESTERN WARCHAUEET	Fan Jose	a l	446	1,128,250	. 491	1 1 1
PACO PROBACEUTICAL Planadut Exstera Co.	Lakewood		Arité Brté	217,117	.65.4	JCC. DI
PANTERL'I CONF.	Hauntan Be, Louis	NO .	815040	11,690,519	.204	йан, 91 141, 151
PAR THURMCEVTICAL	Apring Valley		HT DE	1,772,942	. 161	Bar, 57
PILANETERC TECHNOLOGY	Mail them	ML .	10000	1,159,207	. 154	Bay, 90
Parket Contractors	Las Argetes	а. Ул	879	2 331 741	. 205	Lung () ()
PATER CONF. PATERS, INC.	Scenford Bochester	¥1 ■1	炉菜 副類Ma	650,355	. 576 . 576	Feb, 87 Aug., 90
PENNIL CORP.	Galthersburg	NO D	ASE.	191,400	.061	Mary, 60
PCHARST LTD.	Millione	ы.	44.50 44	151 400 752,647	. 103	066,90
MICHIER MERSTAGE FINANCIAL GROUP MERSTER, FERNICIAL	Forsland	RÉ VL	LA STAD	1,697,740	. 177	0ec, 49
PERFETURE FORMET &	Figure Cliffs	41. HJ	LASTING	1,559,560	.565	fac, 90 Jul, 57
MAADAACA MAAAGEMENT BENVILLES -	AND4	7.	MARCH A	647,355	.051	Aug. 190
PROBATA CASER SIGILARS, INC.	Liversofe	CA.	1412040	536,955	.054	om, 40
PROBATINE REDUCTLE IS CONCLOSED	Andreas Ascesses	94 10	A STAR	251,705	. 155	A
PIEGMONI PEOPEN, COMP. Pier i inforte	Fort Worth	Ď	KT SE	245, 855 2, 582, 255	.085	act, 90 Aug. 44
PICALER FERANCIAL SERVICES INC.	Lockford	ii.	FTSE	129, 199	. 165	aul, 90
PICHERS SAVINGS BANK	Circreter	M	14.50 M	206, 512	.661	Mar, 89
PLY-GEN INDUSTRIES . POLITIF FINANCIAL CORP.	den York den Hildord	87 5 1	152 MASEND	1,034,042	,120	440, 46 449, 70
	Sev Tori	ын ил	RATIONO	221 043 312,503	- 191	149, 90 140, 90
PORTA STSTERS	Şyjadet		12	412,625	.047 /	Dec. DP
POLYMETEMIE SAVINGS ISS	Fought expelle	, in the second s	NASE NO	270,979		140. W
POWELL LOUGHAIEF INC.	No.4 CM	1a GT	MASE .	595,604	058	Jan, 90 Sep, 17
NENENED MURICARE	Alter Elemi Lakova	at .	ASE BATEVAD	\$92,674 \$45,244	-062	540, 24 540, 80
PECCE CONNENTCATIONS	New York	hr	192	1,044,174	- HQ	Sep. 80
PEIRE CONTACT	MATACH	-	NTSE	2,440,062	.051	Hev. 07
PRIME ROTOR THES PRODUCTION CRESSIONS COMP.	sairfield Ationte		8112 845040	6,244,676 512,942	-166	Ney, 90 Ann, 91
		-		112,742	-013	

Alphaberical staring

					Since C Ratio
Company	City	State	Northest	Shares	CO T20
PERMITTÉ OF ANDRES, INC.	and the grant carry	RAL .	10040	360,599 14,477,125	. 12
PROTEIN OLTANIŞÊS	Manifington Institut	NT .	1000	14,477,125	. 163
MUNIC BENJES OL MEN MEAIRO MUNIC BENJES OL MEN MANANNE	Marchaster	*	12	5,780,950	.155
ALERO ENTERNATIONAL INC.	Albuguttika Kan Juph		172	24.663	.075
PART FORD BARCER	Tecom		10.004	7,078,851	124
9 MLO, 20C.	Clerk		NASD-NO	1,003,363	. 180
A Y C METNONE MC.	Ment Chester	PL I	1000	- MA,341	.056
SHAR FEEDROLDET GROUP, INC.	payton	0 •		772,974	. 122
and Inc.	Mathi (e	4	WY BE	1, 20, 590	.099
REMETLIN CHURCHE COMP. Guictatityen inc	den Yerk Gente Mens	ан Сл.	100	2,195,475 741,009	. 125
A C N FECHNOLOGIES, INC.	Los Angel es	ñ.		Du4,424	-06.5
NAILL COP.	Fair -Ker	<u>c</u>	11000	400, 146	100
LUNCE OIL LTD	Calgary, Atheven	Carneda	MY HE	4,955,279	.067
aférnes Chuista, and,	Beer Tork		112040	1,976,965	. D 85
REGIME CO. SHC.	Estaary	M.1	10,0040	110,003	. 127
RESEARCH THERE	Ball [gbs Chiy Dolles	U# 75	1152	349, 112	.004
RETER COP. BIGGE RETEREN CONF.	deah ing son	N.	Na tana	2, 533, 201 766, 547	
KONET C ANON CO.	San Prenciaco	ä		296,671	. 111
PORTE CROUP, INC.	Fort Limblington	M	ar 12	2,065,666	.965
NOUSE CO. (182)	Col-patrice	ND	100040	4,190,723	12.0
NOTAL INTERNATIONAL OFFICAL	Delles		NT SE	507,200	. 073
BOTALÁNA CHÓUSINJÉS, INC.	weat turn ford	55	ASE	74.1,928	.210
RECORDER CORP. AND	Chériotte Los Avgeles		N752	541,609 394,133	.057
EVMER FOODS INC.	Chicago	ñ.	175	181,700	.964
S C S1\$105 JC.	Bataville	ы́.	B. 50 AD	1, 476, 582	.071
I TATLE CONTAILED INC.	Sait Labe City	LT I	BA 50 MP	1,181,436	. 662
SALICE REALTS CARE, INC.	Beverly Mills	ÇA.	an stored	202,000 179,434	.014
SANIFELL ANC.	HOLETON	Tr.	MISE	179,434	. 054
STAT THE COMP.	th I case	l L M t	krife Basilija	6,364,544	. 245
SCHERER (H.P.) CORF. ACIMED LIFE BYBYERS FAC.	Téroy Meple Crove			2,626,684	. 193
ACOTT INSPARATE CORP.	Dentan	TT I	1150 14	\$33,416	, 064
SEA CONTACHLES L10.	Bass I com	Berrausia	NP HE	407, 173	.001
SPAROD INC.	Bender ein	L.	1010040	25,439,683	
SEASULL EACIES	Mainton	ta .	RP SE	166,073	. 052
SECOR BANK FIN	pirmingham Pirmi	AL	NA 50 M	273,640	. 114
SECTÓN ASSOCIATES LTD. SCOLM, CL. I	BOU TOYN	in the	1736	354,995 601,670	124
SERVICE RESOURCES COMP.	New Tort			179, 120	. 080
SHELDY WILLIAMS SHOULINES	Chicago	14	1757	\$42,875	,583
SHOREF'S INC.	MMANSILA	Tr	Nº SE	4,164,165	. 112
SHOREHOOD PROCAGING	Farmingdele		RA SO NA	2,500,787	. 124
SHOUSCHE CORP.	Dudwer City	Ç∎ ≶[222,642	.076
SJOŽŠ ČODĐA, ČL. A SPLJECOM (BAPHICS, JMC.	Lefeierd Routieir Viere	54.	Nº 66	1,422,413	129
FILTON SYNTHE COMP.	latin	ñ	1744	639,514	.073
SILICON WILLE BATCHANES	Wante Clara	<u> </u>	0.0010	751,071	. 137
SELE GERENNOUSE INC.	Terro	n .	11110-00	1,545,364	. 195
SMITH INTERNATIONAL, DEC.	Examinan (Con	Тл	B16E	1,434,423	
SCHITEL CONTUIN	(vgt mood	c.	NASEAG Nasional	1,060,675	.089
stv navis falilits (196) stv navis sérvices en angélien	Nource in Alex Reach Andorse		NATION OF	477,451	
BOY FILLE TOOL WAYS INC.	havelo	a	autous	2,597,561	.115
SOUVER FEDERAL SAVINES AND LONG	TVIN		1150.44	232,743	.114
SOUND JOYICE INC.	beni e	21	W 50 44	164,482	,000
SCUTHINGS BANCING CO.	mi ani	FL.	MARKE.	7,540,556	100
FORTH AND COMPONENTIONE INC.	Levie Ine	CA	6450-60	512,922	.25
SOUTHLIFE HOLD ING (PIG)	Eastwille	1	A 52 67 07	262,279	. 135
sourneute tole. Sournest romest industratio	Gatine Noona	42	8150	4,718,612	. 005
CONTINUEST FOREST FINALS: ELES	Numeri 13a	1.		3, 164, 614	077
APAIN FUND, INC.	ber Tart		111	507,050	.059
SPECIELN CONCESS, INC.	Erte	N	1000	+00,342	.c75
SPECTRUM DIGITAL CORP.	Ba (1985)	÷.	H1 50 44	765.004	.091
STAPLES, INC.	legert on	M	RASOAD	1,623,486	. 104
STAR STATES COP.	Will wingcon	ot CA		445,423 754,447	.0%0
STARS TO GO STARUS GAR DOMA.	Lain Maga 545 Basing tan	5	445040	274,224	. 653
STEELING SOFTWARE	Celina	1.4	ATE	765,600	, 125
SPUMER PALL CO. INC.	Comps City	ND I	ALC: NO	417,082	104

and and

and a second sec

108

Alphaberical Listing

Algebabenical Listing Recimum Recimum						
Company	city.	Slata	Mar Net	Port	Short betto ca 130	Care
ITLEET LOW NURTETING	isaih ing con	PC .	inte	5,031,694	.080	3ap, 20
TANNA NEDICAL COSP.	Albuquerque		. set	1.124.204	.070	
SUMMIT TECHNOLOUT ENC.	March Edward	RL.	10000	1,538,474	. 553	РН, 70
	Crywlei Loko	11	NT DE	1,529,619	. 586	ADY. 29
SAN NECHONARIDA, INC. BAN STATE WAYINGS & LOAN	· Normesn View · Phoenia	CI. Nž	EA STAR	5,004,455	.059	Kar, 10 Kar, 10
SINTS MOTOR LK.	Torrence		LADURA	505, 126	.005	Dec. 90
STATES INC.	ALDADARCAR		LADOAD	500, STZ	.073	\$ep. 99
SUBSTELL LASER TECHNOLOGIES ENGETICS COMMUNICATIONS INC.	Kakwenn	M		525,729	- 066	-ul 90
STUTECE LEFEANAILONAL, Inc.	Rountain View Lang	EL.	44.52.40	425,749		Nev, 14
STSTER SOFTWARE ASSOCIATES	Chicago	11.		410,334 1,061,349	- 1399	Hey, 19
T & SMOUSTRIES, INC.	Mantington Geach	-		60T.044	_ Déé	A
THI SUMP. Thi MOLDINGS INC	Belleville Sourcemburg	**		107,449 2,733,673	-101	0e1, 87 Dec. 91
TALLEY INCONTRICT	Mantola .	<u>,</u>	119	4 07	.099	Dec. (*) Feb. 87
	Little Pock		NTSE	441 087	149	Pec. 94
TCP PIELANCIAL COMP.	Elemente la		1152	574,405	.080	De1, 94
TELE-COMMUNICATIONS, GL. A TELESMENE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.	Calbrook Terrace	Ο L	A SE	4,325,438	- 054	
IELES COMP.	Fulan	ä		1,507,534	. 196	0cs 87 Feb, 87
INDER LOWING CARE	Late Succesy		10,575-000	375 804	. 241	ACT . 87
IDIAL ALE COMP.	four-con	f a	ASE	9,506,612 967,500 537,196	.005	Mar , 90
INERGEDICE, INC. ENGRETEC INTERNATIONAL, ENG.	Mataura San Meleo		A.S.R. NP 52	767,300	.003	4an, 87
ENGUSING FRAILS, INC.	San Maneo Bellevue	5	140.40	1,573,999	. 163	1417, 161 Jan, 167
FIREPLEX INC.	Woodellff Lake		P2	444,606	.051	ien, st
ro-fifméni, luc.	Ray Mertant Island	r.	10040	642,194	, 167	10 A 10
FOOD ENCYTAINS	Seattle		4755 413040	249,339	.059	- 10 A
FOR BROWN ENC.	Engl exced Hildland	60 TY -	1450.40	2,409,547	.052	105, 10 105, 17
TOMA COMP.	Himeconte		W15E	1.651.665	.213	14m. 90
NOTE DO. INC. (INC)	Brook Lym		EASTAR .	B22, 884	-059	10v, \$0 Jul, \$0
10500 0000.	Sente Ronica	<u>,</u>		6,621,000		Jul, 🎫
TRADITIONAL CHONTELES, CHC, TRIAD STRINGS COMP.	Apoura Milis Livermore	3		897, 505 847, 548	.214	Faib, 67 May, 69
TALANGLE INDUSTRIES CL. A	Die Lort	ň	EA.50.40	173,729	.142	au, 62
THIDEN CORP.	New Lock	17	12	165,735	. 66.7	Dec. 66
10 (MECINE, JAC. 10 (MITT CHOUSTURIES	leving Saling	14		644, 195	.070	Ma. M
TAITON ENERGY CONP.	241189	12	WIE STR.	2, 374, 274 937, 669	- 131	540, 84
TUCKNE ELECTATC POLEA	lucean	N		1,592,437	-003	Aug. 07 0e1. 00
TAISING FREAT COMP.	Lape Carel	PL I	A SOAD	1,962,663	-091	May, 87
TYCO CURCHATCHIES TYCO TOYS, SHL.	Exerter		N THE NATEAN	2,567,312	-067	A. 64
17UT COMP.	MI. Lourel Dellas		ATTR	1 101 637	-259	Am, 91 Am, 65
UFCARCONC.	fort worth	ii		1,596,467 2,623,464 526,300	-100	
V 5 EMELEN COMP.	E intertan	MT .	MARCAD .	128 390	,100	MGC. 99
U E F COMP. VENIMATE COMP.	Boston	MA	RASCAD.	973, 137	-074	M. 4 , 40
10. FEASTSTERS	East hanover Londow	10 10		757,376 734,068	.077	kay, 65 Gep, N
unif, aw.	Greensboro	×	1122-00	1,142,766	120	Kor BS
ENTONFED FINANCIAL	8740		8112	637.565	. 131	Sec. 67
CHITES EDUCATION & NOFTWARE CHITES MEALTWOODE COMP.	Encine Rinnetonia	3A 100	145040 115740	345,477	.054 ,0040	Jun, 60
	Him Tort		1155	478 597 579 060		448, 87 447, 87
UNITED SAVERS BANGORP	Hanches Car		BASDAG	627,134	133	Sec. 57
UETEG DODY.	Beitinore	N	마보	6,154,435	.009	Bar, 19
	Chicago -	11	N RE	2,010,601	.934	0cs
USPCI, INC., V BUND CORP.	Chistone City Electord	ex 11		727,000	.051	140 - 40 Get, 20
VILENS DETEN	San Actonic	t.	112	4,00,06	162	Aug. 40
VALLEY BATCOMAL COMP.	Phognis	AT		4,940,050	.24	OCT, 90
ATPOD COLORADA LICONAL	Drange	<u>.</u>	NT FE	1,526,900	.074	Mary, 47
WARCHY CONF. VERTurka fotosiajament secar-	ioranto, Ontario 8. Mollywood	Canada CA	17 52 14 00 14	15, 541, 575 229, 771	.074	440, 20 Jun, 70
VENUENT FINANCIAL SERVICES DON'	Prets leborg	¥7	BA 50.40	294,555	.087	540. 10
YERONEN RESOLATER CID.	Variation, 6.C.	Canada	-	374,937	.059	Sec. 67
VEACON INTERNATIONAL INC.	Rew Tork	M7	12	4,661,632	-071	May, 67
VLCOMP MESTAULANTE, INC. VIEV-MASTEN IOFAL GROUP INC.	Danver Partland	8		454,574	.104	Apr. 87 Har, 97
VINCET NUMBER OTICAL, INC.	Fort beline	že –		57,355	.145	Nov. 84
VILACE, JUC.	pleisah	11	EX10.40	675,675	-141	feb, 67
vikalis, joč.	Conta Méta	Ċ#	A NORTH AND	1,402,915	-154	Nug, 67

Scocks also high there interest, 1965-90 Alphabetics: Listing

.

Locpany	Gley	luit	Rertet	Shares Shares Short	Penime- Shart Relia to 160	Data
VISTA CACHICAL DO.	Social	1¥	ar SC	754,010		Fee, 90
ATASES INC.	Amore Pa	-	10.000	237,710		Nov. 90
W F D INDUSTRIES, INC.	For Links	ozr',	N 10 A 1	542,549		Neg. 90
WASATER ESUCATEON SYSTEMS COM	Salt Lake City	ரட்.	ALC: N	7,004,544		Get, M
WASHINGTON HOMES INC.	Wall don'f	NO.	6795	407,930		Orc. 87
LANNAA ENDUSTRIES, INC.	Mediard langers	ÇMI	LYSE.	665,013	.059	A. 1.
La liter conv.	Sannyele	CA	A 100 A	440,285	.063	Sec. 90
WELFILT COMP.	Ber Ryde Park	MT .	EXECUTO:	487,521		48 , ابد
nerower, Inc.	Dr Hostory	H.	nk	1,010,754	.056	h
MESTERN ACCEPTANCE CONF.	Las Yeşad	84	LASPAR	16,327,400	. 116	HOV, 87
METTERN SAVENUS & LOND ASSOC.	Phoenula	A2	1112	1,111,544	- 105	(an, 69
MESTER LAIDE	laddie tier	H J	J1152	5,990,986	- 192	Gec, 64
WESTNEED CHE, Inc.	Culver City	ĊA.	1453,60	1,328,697		fee, 99
METELING PAINSMLAKEN SILLEY	Sheet trop	WY	47'SE	901 975	. Iaa	Gec. 65
WARGERER FROM, NO.	Indeprepair is	14	847040	646.249	. 144	Jul, 59
WINCHERE DORH.	tinient	fL.	4738	2,536,660	.15	304. 57
NEW VERENE CARP DRAFT AN	fort worth	T	UNIX 37	B65 651	. 639	Jun, 90
WORLDS OF HOMDER, INC.	fr mar 1	CA .	88.5042	2,348,945	. 105	304, 87
WILL LANCEATCASES	El Segundo	C4	87 SE	527,921	.652	Jan, 44
WISE TREAMOLOGY	San Joge	CA .	119	1,5/3,112	. 105	Oct. 07
KONA COMP.	Berkeley:	54	NO TO ALC:	2,642,734	. 198	Jun, 90
stittine time,	ten blage	C I	84 99 40	+35,361	.07a	Jun, 90
1 A GROUP (MC.	St. Louis	1	تبد خز مبر	472.181	.117	Dec, 90
PARSEE CORDANIES	8041-0n	RA .	458	419,062	.091	Rey, 83
YORE ENTERNETICAL	Tark	PL	हाझ	709_004	,090	30. 30
abee of SECOCA COLA	Here hark	4 Y	NAME OF BRIDE	24, QZ1	. 134	Dec, 90
LAPITA COMP.	Révelton	1.	kr5E	1,267,000	-058	ka, 27
ETHITA LESS	East by	R4	4758	4,261,143		Nar, 07
2DWCEAVAm CORP.	Grand Replicts	M 3	EASO D	1,129,007	.246	661, 87

NUTE: This data was compiled by the Commerce, Consumer, and Monstary Affairs Subcommittee from short interest statistics and company data supplied by the New York Stock Exchange, Amorican Stock Exchange, and National Association of Securities Dealers. TSO in column six is total shares outstanding. The market shown in column four is not necessarily the parket in which this issue was traded when the maximum short interest or the maximum short ratio occurred, if this issue moved to a new market after that date. The date in column seven identifies the date when the maximum short ratio year charved.

.

С

~